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Financial and Operating Highlights

MBEREERE

Results E

Revenue WA

Profit attributable to owners of PIN/NCIEZZ SN
the Company FEAG 5 A

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &RREAEF GEAl)

Interim and proposed final dividends 7 A K2 35 R 23
per share (HK cents) TR B (L)

Financial Position B AR

Net current assets BB ESFE

Total interest-bearing bank loans FBRITEREE

Key Financial Ratios FTEHKLLE

Gross profit ratio EVIES

Net profit ratio EFNIES

Return on equity [ ENEIEE

Current ratio BN &

Gearing ratio BEA B EO

Operating Statistics EEHE

Throughput (metric tonnes) &= (AN
Nanjing terminal R A5 5E
Ningbo terminal® b )
Weifang terminal HEDHTSSE

Jetty utilisation rate® EERE A RO
Nanijing terminal [EpREEE
Ningbo terminal® B TETEe
Weifang terminal HEDT RS 2R

Notes:

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$’000 % Change
FET FET 285%
238,148 229,849 3.6
83,916 38,787 116.4
6.87 3.18 116.0

4.8 2.5 92.0
250,612 227,874 10.0
171,375 198,500 18.7
52.1% 49.3% 2.8
38.5% 19.8% 18.7
7.3% 3.8% 3.5

3.2 3.7 N/ATE A
N/ATE A N/A-NiE N/A-N 3
1,515,000 1,529,000 0.9)
397,000 379,000 4.7
5,282,000 4,877,000 8.3
25.4% 28.8% 8.4
0.0% 4.6% (4.6)
80.5% 74.4% 6.1

P EE -

(1) The calculation of the gearing ratio is based on the net bank loans
(total bank loans minus cash and cash equivalents) divided by equity
attributable to owners of the Company multiplied by 100%.

(2)  Jetty of Ningbo terminal has been closed during the year ended 31
December 2019. The business and throughout of Ningbo terminal is
conducted and recorded via public jetties.

(8)  The utilisation rate is calculated by our record of the annual actual

throughput via jetties divided by the total annual designed throughput
capacity of jetties in relation to the operating period.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of Dragon Crown Group Holdings
Limited (the “Group” or “Dragon Crown”) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

SOLID FOUNDATION POSITIONS TO OVERCOME
FUTURE CHALLENGES

With a unique mix of global crises including the COVID-19
pandemic, deteriorating China-U.S. relations, a plunge in oil prices,
and other geopolitical risks, 2020 was an exceptionally challenging
year for many businesses. China also experienced only 2.3%
annual GDP growth in 2020; the country’s slowest in decades
excluding 1976. Despite these strong macro headwinds, Dragon
Crown was able to deliver strong financial performance during the
year, attributable to the Group’s solid foundation and experienced
management team.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020, Dragon Crown’s
revenue was HK$238.1 million (2019: HK$229.8 million) and net
profit of HK$91.7 million (2019: HK$45.5 million). The increase in
our net profit was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in revenue
in respect of methanol and acetic acid; (i) the share of results of
the joint venture in Weifang which improved and turned around
from loss to profit during the year ended 31 December 2020; and
(iii) the result of the net foreign exchange gains recorded for the
year ended 31 December 2020, as compared with the net foreign
exchange losses recorded for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Dragon Crown is one of China’s leading integrated service
providers for storage and handling of liquid petrochemical products,
operating three liquid petrochemical terminals in Nanjing, Ningbo,
and Weifang. With our comprehensive network of terminals, Dragon
Crown is able to provide services to a client base comprising of
world-class chemical enterprises, including Celanese Corporation
(NYSE: CE), a world leading producer of acetyl products.
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHRE

During the year, Dragon Crown’s Nanjing terminal entered a
new 10-year service contract with Celanese (Nanjing) Chemical
Company Limited (“Celanese Nanjing”), a subsidiary of Celanese
Corporation, for the continuous provision of bulk terminal, storage,
and other related services for various liquid chemical products
to Celanese Nanjing for an extension of approximately 10 years,
creating a stable revenue stream to the Group. The service
contract with Celanese Nanjing was in itself sufficient to ensure
stable financial results for the following years. Given the liquid
petrochemicals it handles are necessary for a broad array of daily
consumer products, plastics, paints, textiles, solvents, and other
petroleum-based products, the demand for the Group’s services
will grow with the players in these industries.

The Group has adopted a prudent business strategy to maintain
our strong performance, including actively exploring new market
opportunities while consolidating core business operations. Since
opening Weifang Liquid Terminal to foreign trade in 2018, the port
has served as a major logistics hub for national and foreign vessels
in the Bohai Economic Basin and Northeast Asia. The port provides
an entrance for high deadweight tonnage vessels, and offers high-
quality services to the oil refineries and chemical production plants
nearby.

Dragon Crown views Weifang Liquid Terminal as a long-term profit
contributor. Upon the completion of Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase
I, it will become Dragon Crown’s largest port, and the scale of
its operations and profitability are expected to grow steadily. The
operations at Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase lll are expected to
commence during the second half of 2021. The Group will closely
monitor the completion progress of Phase Ill and ensure it remains
on schedule.
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Weifang Liquid Terminal’s geographical and logistical advantages-
namely its location at the gateway to Northeastern Asian economic
powerhouses, Japan and South Korea, and at a strategic junction
between the Bohai Economic Basin and Yangtze Economic Basin,
and its high safety standards and advanced state-recognized
technologies will also consolidate the Group’s leading position
within China’s liquid petrochemical industry.

DIVIDENDS

In recognition of the long-term support of our shareholders, the
Group sticks to the dividend policy as before. An interim dividend
of HK1.8 cents (2019: HK1.5 cents) per share was declared and
paid during the year. The Board has also proposed a final dividend
of HK3.0 cents (2019: HK1.0 cent) per share. The total dividends
per share in 2020 was HK4.8 cents, which represents 69.8% of
the eamnings per share attributable to owners of the Company for
the year. The dividend distribution is consistent with the Group’s
dividend policy. The Group has maintained an annual dividend
payout ratio exceeding 50% since listing.

SAFETY

Dragon Crown has always put our employees’ safety first. The
Group enacts and implements a range of HSE (Health, Safety, and
Environment) policies that meet national and industry standards.
We also use government monitoring departments to monitor all of
our liquid petrochemical terminals and storage facilities, and provide
regular trainings to staff members to ensure their safety. Due to the
Group’s attention to safety, Dragon Crown saw no material safety
incidents in 2020. We will continue to make further improvements
to achieve our ultimate goal of providing safe services to our
customers and safe workplaces for our employees.
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHRE

MARCHING FORWARD WITH CONFIDENCE AND
PRUDENCE

Looking forward, we expect global economic recovery to remain
fragile and subject to many uncertainties, including the reliability of
pandemic containment efforts and vaccine roll-outs, potential new
China-U.S. trade friction under the new U.S. administration, new
fiscal and monetary stimulus in different countries, and unstable oil
prices. Despite these uncertainties, Dragon Crown is positive about
our industry and business prospects, especially with the support of
our loyal customers and the pipeline opportunities from the Weifang
Liquid Terminal.

Leveraging our professional expertise and excellent facilities and
services, we have successfully built a good reputation within
our industry and trust with our clients, including well-known
international chemical enterprises and oil refineries. Dragon Crown
also sees a new business opportunity in the increasing market
demand for outsourced logistics arrangements, and will begin to
offer cost-effective solutions to our clients and help them to reduce
costs and raise efficiencies and flexibility.

The Nanjing Jiangbei New Materials High-tech Park (formerly
known as Nanjing Chemical Industry Park) is the Group’s flagship
operation that has contributed stable and satisfactory profits over
the years. To further increase our profitability, we are committed to
ongoing quality improvements of our terminal and storage facilities
and services. The Group is also ready to capture development and
expansion opportunities with high potential projects coming from
the reserved lands at the Nanjing Liquid terminal site.

The Weifang Liquid Terminal, as a major logistics hub for national
and foreign vessels in the Bohai Economic Basin and Northeast
Asia, has also enabled the Group to achieve obvious logistical
advantages in Shandong Province. Dragon Crown is well positioned
to capitalize on new opportunities to expand our business, as we
continue to invest in the Weifang terminal. When the operation of
Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase Il is commenced, the terminal will
enable the Group to further develop its business in the Northeast
China and Northeast Asia regions, and take a leading position in
new markets.
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Additionally, we will strive to maintain our strong financial position
by continuously monitoring the Group’s cash flows and liquidity. As
a result of our efforts over the years, Dragon Crown has sufficient
funding to support the Group’s sustainable development. We will
continue to strengthen our leading position in the industry, improve
the profitability of our business operations, and explore new
investment opportunities for shareholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my heartfelt gratitude to all of our business partners,
customers, and most valued shareholders for their continuous
trust and support, and to our dedicated directors, management,
and staff for their valuable contributions in 2020. | look forward to
achieving further strong performance with all of you in the future,
and generating better returns for our shareholders.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NG Wai Man, aged 64, is an executive director, the chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. NG is the
founder of our Group and is principally responsible for operation
of our Board and is the key decision-maker of our Group. He
is responsible for formulating the overall business strategic
development for our Group. Mr. NG has accumulated around 32
years of management and operation experience in the terminal and
storage of liquid chemical products industry. Mr. NG is the founder
of Dragon Source Industrial Limited and its invested entity, Ningbo
Haixiang Liquid Chemical Store Co., Ltd. (the predecessor of Ningbo
Xinxiang Liquid Chemical Store Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Xinxiang”)), and
has managed its operation since 1988. Mr. NG was the president
and legal representative of Nanjing Dragon Crown Liquid Chemical
Terminal Co., Ltd (“NJDC”) from April 2004 to 2007 responsible for
overseeing strategic development and management of resources.
From December 1993 to September 2004, Mr. NG was a director
of Ningbo Huaxiang Inspection Co., Ltd, a company which provides
inspection, certification and testing services. He served as the
chairman and general manager from October 1997 to October 2006
and legal representative from October 1997 to October 2007 for
Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon Crown Chemical International Trade
Company Ltd., a trading company, responsible for strategic business
management. Mr. NG was appointed as a director of the Company
on 16 July 2010 and was re-designated as an executive director and
the chairman of the Company on 30 November 2010. Mr. NG was
then appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company on 22
September 2017.

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin, aged 59, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. CHONG joined our Group in 1994 and is principally
responsible for business and strategic development, major
decision-making and management with major customers. He has
accumulated around 26 years of experience in the liquid chemical
products terminal and storage industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. CHONG worked for Mitsui & Company (Hong Kong) Limited,
an international conglomerate engaging in various businesses,
including worldwide logistics and financing, development of
infrastructure, for over seven years. He was in the chemicals
division and undertook business support centered around
petrochemical products chain for logistics and distribution. He was
also responsible for developing strategic partnerships and customer
relations. Mr. CHONG graduated from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 1986 with a Degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration. Mr. CHONG was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 30 November 2010.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming, aged 55, is an executive director of the
Company. Ms. CHAN is responsible for our Group’s day-to-
day management, administration as well as human resources
management. She joined our Group in 1988 and has accumulated
around 32 years of management and operation experience in the
terminal and storage of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to
joining our Group, Ms. CHAN worked for Wai Hing Company, a
trading company, from November 1986 to July 1988 responsible for
arrangements in trading of chemicals. Ms. CHAN was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 30 November 2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FENG Jianping, aged 67, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 29 June 2018. Mr.
FENG is also a member of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of our Board. Mr. FENG
was the executive director and vice president of Sinopec Shanghai
Petrochemical Company Limited (formerly known as Shanghai
Petrochemical Complex), a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(collectively the “Main Board”), from January 1996 to April 2004.
Mr. FENG was also the general manager and secretary of party
committee of the Guangzhou branch of China Petroleum &
Chemical Corporation, a company listed on the Main Board,
from April 2004 to July 2013. He also served as the group leader
of the third supervisory group in China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation from June 2013 to December 2014. Mr. FENG has
considerable experience in operations management. He graduated
from Shanghai Industry University in 1983 majoring in business
management and is a senior economist.

Mr. HOU Xiaoming, aged 58, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company with on 1 July 2019. Mr.
HOU is also a member of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of our Board. Mr. HOU
served various positions in Sinopec Shanghai Gaogiao Company
(formerly named as Shanghai Gaogiao Petrochemical Company), a
subsidiary of China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (a company
the H shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong, London and
New York stock exchanges and the A shares of which are listed on
the Shanghai stock exchange), from July 1985 until his resignation
in September 2017 with his last positions as deputy secretary of
the party committee, director and general manager. Mr. HOU has
extensive experience in the petrochemical industry and corporate
management. He graduated from East China University of Science
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEAE

and Technology (“ECUST”) (formerly named as East China Institute
of Chemical Technology) in 1985 with a bachelor degree in
engineering specialising in petroleum refining. He obtained a master
degree in chemical engineering in 2000 and a doctorate degree
in chemical technology in 2016, both from ECUST. He was also
the author or one of the coauthors of a few publications on the
petrochemical industry.

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 30 November 2010.
Mr. LAU is also chairman of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of our Board. Mr. LAU served
as the financial controller of a subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board for over 3 years and had worked
with PricewaterhouseCoopers for over 5 years. Mr. LAU served as a
non-executive director of ZMFY Automobile Glass Services Limited, a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market Board of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM”) from September 2013 to December 2014. Mr.
LAU graduated from Oregon State University with a bachelor degree
of science in Business Administration in 1989. Mr. LAU is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
as well as a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. LAU has been serving as the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board, since April 2003. Mr. LAU has served as an
independent non-executive director of China Qinfa Group Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board since June 2009. Mr. Lau served
as an independent non-executive director of SDM Group Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the GEM, from September 2014 to June
2020. Mr. LAU has also served as an independent non-executive
director of CTEH INC., a company listed on the Main Board, since
May 2018.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WOO Yiu Chung, aged 46, is the chief financial officer of
our Group. Mr. WOO has joined our Group since January 2020.
Mr. WOO has over 23 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. WOO had over 6
years of working experience in an international firm of certified
public accountants and over 12 years of experience in key
financial position in Hong Kong and overseas listed companies.
Mr. WOO graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Bachelor’'s Degree of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy. Mr.
WOQOO is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. ZOU Qing Long, aged 56, is the chief operating officer of
our Group and a director of NJDC. Mr. ZOU has joined our Group
since May 2004, was the general manager of NJDC and has been
promoted as the chief operating officer of the Group since July
2017, principally responsible for our Group’s overall operation
and business development. Mr. ZOU has accumulated around 18
years of management and operation experience in the terminal
and storage of liquid chemical products industry. Mr. ZOU’s major
responsibility with the Group includes managing and coordinating
operation workflow, recruitment and training of managers under his
supervision, developing guidelines of operation and maintenance.
He is overseeing operations in our terminals in Nanjing, Ningbo
and Weifang. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in the China
Maritime Safety Administration for 16 years in which he gained
valuable maritime logistics experience. Mr. ZOU graduated from
Nanjing Political College of the Chinese People’s Liberation Army
with a bachelor degree in Economics Management in 2003.

Mr. YANG Ai Ming, aged 59, is the chairman of the board and
the legal representative of NJDC and Weifang Sime Darby Liguid
Terminal Co., Ltd. (“WSDL”"). Mr. YANG has joined our Group since
December 2017, principally responsible for the monitoring function
of the board of directors of NJDC and WSDL. Mr. YANG graduated
from East China University of Science and Technology in 1984,
majoring in petroleum refining engineering and he joined Sinopec
Yangzi Petrochemical Company Limited, engaging in technical
management duties in the same year. Since 2001, he successively
served as the deputy head of HSE department, the deputy
factory director of refinery, the head of production and operational
management department, the marketing manager, the logistics
manager, the head of production technology and operational
dispatch department, the party committee secretary of quality
inspection center of Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company
Limited, the vice chairman of labor union of BASF-YPC Company
Limited, etc. Mr. YANG was awarded the title of senior engineer in
1997.

EENRSREEAE

BEBELE 565 BASEEMLERE
REFREPES - PLAEBE2004F5 A M
AREE - BEMERENRLIE - 52017
FTRE  FAEASELERE FE2AF
REBWBBEENEBTR - HAERT
R LB RBENREFTERBLI8FR
ERTBELR - PLERAEBNEE
BEOREERBALETLIERE BE
REHEETHIEEAL - #lTEER
HEES  RATEEEERR  FEK
RIS EEM &8 o« MIMAREER - R
FEEERIHI6F  BEEENESLY
AR o PRAER2003FEERTEAR
R ERRABUAEMNR  EELEEES L

(i -

BEHEE 595 - B REN AT R
EERLMBIEEAR AR (WSDL)MES
RFEENRE - HEAEB2017F12HRM
AREE  FZEBREREANRWSDLES
GREITRTS - BT EN1084F RENE
FEITERARRETREERE - FAF#EA
FREALETABLETAERR SR
EETE - B2001F 8 - HABETTE
At TFABLEIBRATRE Z2M
REHRHE - BERERE EELE
BIRE R - SEACE - MR SE
AESMEETHEISSE  ERPOLE
ZELZL - BTAL-BHRXBRETAA
ITERIFRERE - HAEM7TFES
A T A2 ADBSAT o

Annual Report 2020 FE#H &

11



12

Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. GU Jian Xin, aged 54, is the general manager of NJDC.
Mr. GU has joined our Group since December 2010 as the
deputy general manager of NJDC, in charge of HSE department,
engineering department and administrative and human resources
department and responsible for the coordination and contact
with the industry authorities of customs, state inspection, frontier
defense, maritime affairs, port, safety supervision, environmental
protection, fire safety, park management committee, etc. and has
been promoted as the general manager of NJDC since July 2017,
mainly responsible for the overall operation management of NJDC.
Mr. GU has 31 years of working experience in the liquid chemical
terminal and storage industry and has extensive experience
in areas such as project construction, production operation,
market development, government coordination and corporate
management. Mr. GU graduated from Southeast University in
Nanjing. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. GU worked in Nanjing Port
Co., Ltd. from August 1989 to January 2004, successively served as
technician, secretary to general manager, manager of engineering
and technology department, manager of development department
and assistant to general manager. He served as the deputy general
manager of Oiltanking Nanjing Co., Ltd. from January 2004 to
November 2009.

Mr. LAU Chi Ming, Sammy, aged 63, is the deputy general
manager of NJDC. Mr. LAU is principally responsible for our
Group’s business and new project development of petrochemical
terminal in Nanjing. Mr. LAU has accumulated around 32 years
of management and operation experience in the terminal and
storage of liquid chemical products industry. Mr. LAU was an
engineer of ExxonMobil Hong Kong Limited from 1988 to 2004
and he assumed management roles in HSE, logistics, operations
and maintenance. Mr. LAU graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering in 1979.
Mr. LAU was elected as a Graduate of the Institution of Engineers,
Australia on 10 January 1985 and has been included in the list of
competent persons for Class 2-inspection and certification of LPG
compound and cylinder stores by Electrical & Mechanical Services
Department, Government of Hong Kong since 6 November 1996.
He joined our Group in April 2005 as a project manager.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. XIANG Xiao Chu, aged 65, is the general manager of
Ningbo Ningxiang Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo
Ningxiang”) and Ningbo Xinxiang. Mr. XIANG has joined our Group
since November 1995. Mr. XIANG is principally responsible for our
Group’s overall operational management in Ningbo. Mr. XIANG
has accumulated around 28 years of management and operation
experience of which around 25 years are in the terminal and
storage of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. XIANG served as deputy director the factory, division
deputy chief of Human Resource and Security and an office
administrator in Ningbo No.2 Pharmaceutical Factory of Zhejiang
Province from February 1988 to October 1992. During the period
from November 1992 to September 1995, Mr. XIANG served as an
office administrator handling selection and recruitment of new staff,
finance management and observing compliance of HSE policies of
Zhejiang Chemicals Factory (Yongxin Company). Mr. XIANG has
served as a deputy director and director of tank field, business
manager and general manager assistant in Ningbo Ningxiang
and Ningbo Xinxiang since October 1995. Mr. XIANG completed
administration management course of Self-Study Examination of
the Higher Education of Zhejiang Province in October 1990.

Mr. JI Hongchen, aged 57, is the general manager of WSDL.
Mr. JI has joined WSDL since December 2020, responsible for the
overall operational management of the company. Mr. JI graduated
from Fushun Petroleum Institute in 1985, majoring in petroleum
storage and transportation. In the same year, he joined Sinopec
Yangzi Petrochemical Co., Ltd. Since 1997, he has successively
served as the storage and transportation plant (chief engineer,
deputy plant director, plant director), logistics manager, production
and operation management department director of Sinopec Yangzi
Petrochemical Co., Ltd., deputy chief engineer of Sinopec Yangzi
Petrochemical Co., Ltd., general manager of Huaian Qingjiang
Petrochemical Co., Ltd., and deputy general manager in charge of
storage and transportation department of Zhejiang Petrochemical
Co., Ltd. Mr. JI graduated from Nanjing Industrial Park in 2003 with
a master degree in chemical process machinery. He was awarded
the title of senior engineer in 1997.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Dragon Crown is one of China’s leading integrated service providers
that specialized in the storage and handling of liquid petrochemical
products, operating three terminals located in Nanjing, Ningbo,
and Weifang. Strategically situated in China’s major petrochemical
industry hubs, the Group has set up jetties and tank farms (together,
the “Terminals”) along the coastline to capture increasing demand
from the petroleum and chemical industries. Dragon Crown offers
customers a range of high quality and comprehensive liquid
petrochemical terminal and storage services through its own jetties,
storage tanks, and dedicated pipelines.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the throughput volume
of liquid petrochemical products at the Group’s Nanjing, Ningbo,
and Weifang terminals reached 1,515,000 metric tonnes, 397,000
metric tonnes, and 5,282,000 metric tonnes, respectively (2019:
1,529,000 metric tonnes, 379,000 metric tonnes, and 4,877,000
metric tonnes, respectively), with a combined throughput volume of
7,194,000 metric tonnes (2019: 6,785,000 metric tonnes).

The following table provides an overview of the Terminals as at 31
December 2020:

KB

EARTEAENGARGHER 2 —
TREINREEREEREOR - £
R ERREGEE=(EFER  ~AEEF
REEMEME SN PEEZAMETITRR
E4 - BENEEGHEEY TR RE
(i[5 E ) AEE A ML TIT%
e RWFER - ENEBEEHHE -
RELEREERNTPRHtEREREE
MEE R AL E M ISR RIETFARTS

REE2020F12 A1 B ILEE - AEER
BR - ERRAETEENREAERET
E95151,515,000288 + 397,000 ME &2
5,282,000°AM18 (20194 : 2 5llA41,529,000
AME ~ 379,000AME K2 4,877,000/A M)
AHEHET,194, 00020 (20194
6,785,0002 M) °

TREYMN20205F12 A31 B &5 SaHE = 15

BE -

Terminals Nanjing Ningbo Weifang Total
BEER AR BiR o 2%] @et
Number of tanks RSN 32 12 63 107
Storage capacity (m?) FREAE AR 210,000 29,000 497,000 736,000
Number of berths pIEE 3 1 2 6
Berthing capacity (dwt) afzae S (FEME) 45,000** 3,000* 60,000
Jetty designed throughput WEERRET AN 2 (RH)

capacity (metric tonnes) 4,000,000 100,000 4,000,000 8,100,000
* Jetty of Ningbo terminal has been closed during the year ended 31 * 2RISR A AR E2019F 12 A31H

IFFED R - ERITENEBNE
HEBBAEBEAAMET R

December 2019. The business and throughput of Ningbo terminal is
conducted and recorded via public jetties.

B =185 Bl 520,000 EME + 20,0008 &
18 &2 5,000, EMERI AN AR ©

* Comprises three berths with capacity of 20,000 dwt, 20,000 dwt, *
and 5,000 dwt, respectively.

=* Comprises two berths with capacity of 30,000 dwt each. = I {EEE A30,0008, EME A AR A

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR



Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s main source of revenue and profits come from its
flagship terminal, located in the Nanjing Jiangbei New Materials
High-tech Park (formerly known as Nanjing Chemical Industry Park).
In 2020, the Group’s largest customer, Celanese Corporation
(NYSE: CE), a world leading producer of acetyl products, also
located in the same high-tech park, contributed HK$205.0 million
(2019: HK$198.7 million) to the Group’s revenue, equivalent to
86.1% (2019: 86.5%) of total revenue during the year. Dragon
Crown’s Nanjing business operations continue to contribute stable
revenue derived from established, long-term customer relationships.
Additionally, during the year, the Nanjing terminal entered a new 10-
year service contract with Celanese (Nanjing) Chemical Company
Limited (“Celanese Nanjing”), a subsidiary of Celanese Corporation
and a world class producer of acetic acid, vinyl acetate monomer,
acetic anhydride, and other chemical products, for the continuous
provision of bulk terminal, storage, and other related services for
various liquid chemical products to Celanese Nanjing in Nanjing for
an extension of approximately 10 years, creating a new and stable
revenue stream to the Group.

Beyond Nanjing, the Group regards its Weifang Liquid Terminal
as a significant business development milestone. Since the
commencement of Weifang Liquid Terminal’s Phase | and Il
Projects, Weifang Port saw its first profitable year in 2020. Owing
to its geographic and logistical advantages, Weifang Port serves as
a major logistics hub for national and foreign vessels in the Bohai
Economic Basin and Northeast Asia. The port provides an entrance
for high deadweight tonnage vessels, and offers high-quality
services to the ail refineries and chemical production plants located
within 300km radius.

The operations at Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase Il are expected to
commence during the second half of 2021. The Group will closely
monitor the completion progress of Phase lll and ensure it remains
on schedule.

BB WED T
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Weifang Liquid Terminal is an important cornerstone for Dragon
Crown’s longer-term growth. Dragon Crown expects the terminal’s
operation scale and profitability to further increase after the
completion of Phase Ill. The Group also believes Weifang Liquid
Terminal will be a continuous source of profit, while also helping
to consolidate the Group’s leading position within China’s liquid
petrochemical industry.

Due to the prolonged COVID-19 pandemic and a series of market
uncertainties including China-U.S. tensions, the plunge in oil
prices, and other geopolitical risks, China’s GDP grew 2.3% only in
2020, which was the country’s slowest annual growth in decades
excluding 1976. Despite all these, Dragon Crown was able to
minimize the negative impact of the global economic downturn,
due largely to the Group’s strong foundation established over years
by a visionary management team. Looking ahead, Dragon Crown is
positioned to capitalize on new opportunities to expand its business
while continuing to invest in its Weifang Liquid Terminal.

As at 31 December 2020, Dragon Crown is in a strong financial
position, with total assets of HK$1,434.1 million (2019: HK$1,339.9
million) and total equity of HK$1,191.9 million (2019: HK$1,076.0
million). As at 31 December 2020, the Group has HK$288.4 million
(2019: HK$243.2 million) cash on hand and in a net cash position.
This healthy financial position will help to ensure the Group’s long-
term sustainability.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Global economic recovery remains fragile and will be subject to
many uncertainties, including the effectiveness of the pandemic
containment and vaccine roll-out, China-U.S. trade frictions under
the new U.S. administration, new fiscal and monetary stimulus
from different countries, and unstable oil prices. Despite these
uncertainties, Dragon Crown is positive about its industry and
business prospects.

Beyond the pipeline opportunities from the Weifang Liquid
Terminal, the Group is continuing to develop its core business while
also exploring new markets. To further grow its market share in
domestic and international markets, Dragon Crown is reinforcing its
business development in China’s coastal regions, particularly along
the Yangtze River Delta and Bohai Bay regions.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Dragon Crown is gradually becoming more capable of capturing
market demand from Northeast China and Northeast Asia, upon
the commencement of operation of the Weifang Liquid Terminal
Phase Il which will become the Group’s largest terminal with total
storage capacity of over 660,000 cubic meter. Several potential
customers are currently in negotiations with the Group about
renting tank capacity. When operational, the terminal will enable the
Group to develop the Northeast China and Northeast Asia regions,
and take a leading position in the new markets.

With advanced and safety operations managed by a visionary
management team, Dragon Crown is regarded as one of the best
storage and integrated terminal service providers in China and Asia.
The Group is committed to delivering strong performance and value
to shareholders in the years ahead and beyond.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s revenue
increased by 3.6% from HK$229.8 million in 2019 to HK$238.1
million. The increase was mainly due to the increase in revenue in
respect of methanol and acetic acid.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2020, gross profit increased
by 9.6% from HK$113.2 million in 2019 to HK$124.0 million. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in revenue as mentioned
above. The gross profit ratio increased by 2.8%, from 49.3% in
2019 to 52.1% for the year.

Other income

Other income increased to HK$31.0 million from HK$16.5 million
in 2019, which was mainly due to net foreign exchange gains
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2020 of HK$12.6 million.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by 18.6% from HK$46.1
million in 2019 to HK$37.6 million. The decrease was mainly due
to the net foreign exchange losses recorded for the year ended 31
December 2019 of HK$2.5 million and various administrative costs
reduction under COVID-19 pandemic during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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BEADRICMBE=HRALE  Hi§
RAARERAEMNIGEE  FHREEEF
#838660,00032 75K - EEAK A ERE N
EhBERIE R RIEEMTHISHFR
ETEBEEREPRIEEASE SR EEHE
RE - HERALER  BEPHAKEFH
BRI ME KRR MG - LA
WGP EBAIRIAL ©

A R B A IR R M S T R B
2EET  RAREAPENESNEE
0 677 ok & TR TR TS (4775  EEA A
BAR  AEEEHNARRE KB
SO B -

P RECRE
WA

HZE2020F12A31HILFE - AEBEWA
20194 2 2.298{B 8 TT1E N3.6% £2.381
BATT  ZIBMEZ RN PEZEFERR 2 I
AIEANFTER

EF

HZE2020F12A31 B IEFE - EFIH2019
F71.132BB L MNO.6%E1.240(8%8
TC o ZIBMEZ BN Laay U AL e
B o EFEM20195F149.3%IEM2.8%E
SHEH52.1% °

Hip A

Hip W A B2019F 21,6508 g M=
3,1008 57T @ ZIEMNEBHNREE 20204
12 431 B IE FE S INE R FHE1,2608
I o

THHAX

THRAZMR2019F 24,6108 B oiF
18.6%Z£3,760&%E T - XA L EEHFER
HZE2019F12 A31 H It FE 5 INEE 1B
FRE2508 BT B 1E20205F12 H31H Ik
FENMHUBRRSEBTSBITHE AR

o

Annual Report 2020 FE#H &

17



18

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Finance costs

Finance costs for the year decreased to HK$6.2 million from
HK$8.7 million in 2019, mainly attributable to the decrease in
interest rates and the repayment of certain bank loans by the
Group during the year.

Share of profit and loss of an associate

The associate in Tianjin was going through the liquidation process
since 2016 and the loss of HK$0.3 million for the year (2019:
HK$0.4 million) was due to the administrative expenses in relation
to the liquidation.

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures

There was no significant change in the share of profits of the joint
ventures in Ningbo compared with that of 2019.

The results of the joint venture in Weifang turned around from
loss to profit during the year due to the higher revenue and lower
operating costs.

Accordingly, the Group recorded share of profits of its joint ventures
of HK$12.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, as
compared to share of losses of its joint ventures of HK$2.1 million
in 2019.

Tax expense

The tax expense for the year increased to HK$31.7 million from
HK$26.9 million in 2019. The increase was due to the increase in
profit for the year.

Investment in Weifang Sime Darby Liquid Terminal Co., Ltd.
(“WSDL?)

The acquisition of 50% equity interest in WSDL at a consideration
of RMB60.9 million was completed on 23 May 2016 and WSDL
becomes a joint venture of the Group since then. Afterwards, the
Group injected RMB225.0 million in capital into WSDL in proportion
to its shareholding interest in WSDL up to 31 December 2020.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EFEEZERERA T
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The Group also provided shareholder’s loans to WSDL. As at 31 AEBEFFERBEBEERTFWSDL © B
December 2020, WSDL was indebted to the Group in an aggregate 2020412 A31H » WSDLAR A& E 4258
amount of RMB143.1 million. B1AZTEARE -

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING EHFBREFECASE
The Group has received approximately HK$281.1 million net REBEBARRRRNHR2011F ETHESE
proceeds, after deducting underwriting fees and other related HNBREHERAREMBEREZE ZEX

expenses, from listing of the Company’s shares in 2011. TH)FE42.811{E8 T °

These net proceeds were applied up to 31 December 2020 in BERNQFBEA2011F5A308 2 K

accordance with the proposed applications set out in the section ER(HBERER]D [RAEFEI RAEFIAR
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Company’s B RAREHHA2013F2H6HER
prospectus dated 30 May 2011 (the “Prospectus”) and the BEMSHKIERR] - BEBA2017F12A

Company’s announcements dated 6 February 2013 headed 0REARIBERNEEMEHRIERSEI R
“Change of use of proceeds”, dated 20 December 2017 headed HEA2017F12 A22BBAEBERAE ]2

“Change in use of proceeds from the global offering”, and dated 22 NEMBCEZERE  ZEGERIETFHE
December 2017 headed “Clarification announcement”, as follows: B ZE2020%F12831HILHERMT ¢

Net proceeds (HK$ million)
FIBFIEFHE(EEET)

Available Utilized Unutilized
AT &) A =)z RENA
Construction of second BRFEIERL G
cryogenic ethylene tank 133.1 133.1 -
Construction of our third jetty SRR EEPENE A 46.6 46.6 -
Investing into existing projects ~ RERIEHBIER 15.0 15.0 -
Investing into future business WERARERERMS
development opportunities 5.0 - 5.0
Construction of nine general ERROE M AR
purpose storage tanks 33.3 33.3 -
General working capital —MREEES 48.1 48.1 -
281.1 276.1 5.0

The Group held the unutilized net proceeds in short-term deposits R2020%F12 318 » NEEEREFBE
or time deposits with banks in Hong Kong as at 31 December RIEERE SRR TR A ER
2020. BB ZRIT
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total bank loans amounted
to HK$171.4 million (2019: HK$198.5 million), all of which are Hong
Kong dollar bank loans. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$288.4 million (2019: HK$243.2 million). The
Group maintained net cash position at 31 December 2020 and
2019. The gearing structure was as follows:

Net cash R& 58
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZNA Rl#E A A JE(G#ER
Gearing ratio BEAGHE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current assets and current
liabilities amounted to HK$364.1 million (2019: HK$313.5 million)
and HK$113.5 million (2019: HK$85.6 million), respectively. As at
31 December 2020, the Group’s current ratio was 3.2 (2019: 3.7).

The Group strives to efficiently use its financial resources and
adopts a prudent financial policy in order to maintain a healthy
capital ratio and support its business expansion requirements.

DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The maturity profile of the Group’s bank loans is set out below:

Repayable: FEEFIA ¢
Within one year 1R
In the second year F2F

Note: All bank loans as at 31 December 2020 are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Group’s cash and bank balances were primarily denominated
in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Its operating cash inflows and
outflows were primarily denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. During the year, the Group did not have any material foreign
exchange exposure and had not used any financial instruments for
hedging purpose.

All bank borrowings of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, the interest rates of these bank borrowings are calculated
in Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate plus a particular percentage.
The Group will closely monitor the interest rate movements and
regularly review its banking facilities so as to mitigate the expected
interest rate risk.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 339 full
time employees (2019: 339). The Group provides competitive
remuneration package to retain its employees including salaries,
discretionary bonus, medical insurance, other allowance and
benefits in kind as well as mandatory provident fund schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for employees in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the Annual Report for the year ended 31
December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders, enhance
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as the basis of the Company’s
corporate governance practices.

The Company has in place a corporate governance framework
and has established a set of policies and procedures based on the
CG Code. Such policies and procedures provide the infrastructure
for enhancing the Board’s ability to implement governance and
exercise proper oversight on business conduct and affairs of the
Company.

In the opinion of the directors, throughout the year, the Company
has complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code, except for code provision A.2.1 which stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
“Employees Written Guidelines”) no less exacting terms than the
Model Code for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

THE BOARD

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees
the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and
takes decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.
The Board should regularly review the contribution required from

a director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and
whether the director is spending sufficient time performing them.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises 6 directors, consisting of 3 executive
directors and 3 independent non-executive directors.

The Board currently comprises the following directors:
Executive directors:

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin
Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. FENG Jianping
Mr. HOU Xiaoming

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time
pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive
directors are expressly identified in all corporate communications
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this
annual report. None of the members of the Board is related to one
another.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are held by Mr. NG Wai Man who is the founder of the Company
and has extensive experience in the industry.

The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer in the same person is beneficial to the
business prospects and management and provides the Company
with strong and consistent leadership and allows for effective and
efficient planning and implementation of business decisions and
strategies.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EFEEZERERA T

EEeEK

i3

E=ZgAMKANES  BREMUHITE
ENSMIEIIFMITES -

EESAMBREMIES:

HITES

R=SZ L

BUIFMITES -

BIHRELE
L
RERARSE A

EE2EREHNED) FERE EHRR
RARB T2 AR REAS B
B A RFREAE D ER LT R E
AR IFTES S ©

ARBEEEREFBERAFERIEZR
BREEAR] 8  EEEKE CHLE
ERIERE -

FERITHAR

ARBEFRITREZNACARERE
HHEE - WARRRINAIS AREZTTE
BEEENER

EXefE R - ABEEXZERITHRAE
HENREBARREE » XA BARTF
REBRAMBEZEE - BARMAYE
o AR B K AT AR S SRS o



Corporate Governance Report

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles
of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person
will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company. The Board shall
review its structure from time to time to ensure appropriate and
timely action to meet changing circumstances.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
representing one-third of the Board with at least one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgment to the Board. Through active participation at Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests, all independent non-executive directors
have made various contributions to the effective direction of the
Company.

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen has served the Board for more than nine years.
Notwithstanding his length of tenure, in view of his professionalism,
extensive business experience and familiarity with the Company’s
affairs, the Board is of the opinion that he possesses the required
character, integrity and experience to ensure his independence in
order to objectively scrutinise the Company’s performance.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles
of Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing Board composition, monitoring the appointment of
directors and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are
appointed for a specific term of one year, subject to renewal after
the expiry of the then current term.

All the directors of the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings. Under the
Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The Company’s Articles of
Association also provides that all directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment. The retiring directors shall be
eligible for re-election.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr.
CHONG Yat Chin and Mr. FENG Jianping shall retire by rotation
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election pursuant to the
Company’s Articles of Association.
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company. The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer, and through him, to the senior management the authority
and responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and responsibilities
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
aforesaid officers.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

Each newly appointed director receives formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company regularly circulates training materials or
briefings to all directors in respect of the updates on, among other
things, the Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) or other useful guidelines,
the Companies Ordinance and financial or accounting standards
which may be of the interest to the directors and benefit for them
to discharge their duties. Training session for directors will also be
arranged where necessary.

In addition, the Company provides and circulates the directors
with monthly and regular updates relating to the Group’s business,
financial position and business environment, which aims to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

All directors have provided to the Company with their training
records on a regular basis, and such records have been maintained
by the Company for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.
During the year, all directors (Mr. NG Wai Man, Mr. CHONG Yat
Chin, Ms. CHAN Wan Ming, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, Mr. FENG Jianping
and Mr. HOU Xiaoming) have complied with the code provisions
in relation to continuous professional development through
attendance of seminars on corporate governance, regulatory
development and other relevant topics.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is
set out under “Corporate Information” on page 175 of this annual
report.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises four members, namely, Mr.
LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. FENG Jianping, Mr. HOU Xiaoming
and Mr. NG Wai Man, the majority of which are independent non-
executive directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board,
where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s
relevant criteria as set out in the Director Nomination Policy that
are necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve
Board diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation
to the Board.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year under review
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
the independence of the independent non-executive directors,
and to consider the qualifications of the retiring directors standing
for election at the Annual General Meeting and to consider and
recommend to the Board on the appointment of independent
non-executive director. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises four members,
namely, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. FENG Jianping, Mr.
HOU Xiaoming and Mr. NG Wai Man, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of all directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year under
review to review and make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration policy and the remuneration packages of all directors
and senior management.
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Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are
set out in note 11 to the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. FENG Jianping
and Mr. HOU Xiaoming, including one independent non-executive
director with the appropriate professional qualifications. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditor.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

° To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the external auditor
before submission to the Board

° To review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, its fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor

° To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control systems and risk
management system and associated procedures

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year under
review to review the interim and annual financial results and reports
and significant issues on the financial reporting, operational and
compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function, appointment of
external auditor and engagement of non-audit services and relevant
scope of works and, connected transactions and arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.
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The Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice without
the presence of the executive directors.

The Group’s accounting principles and practices and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board and is available
on the website of the Company. The Company recognizes
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of the
Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy
and to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.
In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the
Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and
will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional and industry
experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board

is sufficiently diverse and the Board has not set any measurable
objectives.
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The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as REAZEEKENESS L LBER (nE

appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. ) - DA REB R -

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY EZRABE

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority EEgEREBEREETAQAIRS
for selection and appointment of directors to the Nomination ZE®  DHEREEES -

Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets RAFIEHRMNEFIRBBUR - ZBEREH
out the selection criteria and process and the Board succession BRRAMEAARREEZEZHIRIZER
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment ErAkEsgnErREEEAE" 5§
of directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the Board ERRETSHARFMEERDT - £
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives NEENBEFTEHERES BN E - kg
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and REFENFEEREFAENEEA
appropriate leadership at Board level. =K

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing EERANEEBEEREAZERMER
the suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a HEFE 2 ETAERMNTE  BFETR

proposed candidate, including but not limited to the following: RTHIREE :

e Reputation for integrity e  HEMEE

e Accomplishment and experience o B

e Qualifications o B

e Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements o HUAEMELE ESRAEST

e Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest o AR ARYEREREDA K AR RE I 2 A9 R

e Independence LI hVA

e Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, e EFEEFHEMNZILL  BEETR
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background, PR - Fie (185R3 A L) ~ b K
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and HEBS Tk ZELR - B
length of service BN FEHETE

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be FlER=EH2E - WIEBIAERZE
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the MAEREMER - REZE 2 HIBA
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate. ERGEERBBEENTEMAL -

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for EZREABENHBERABRRAG LEHER
the selection and appointment of new directors and re-election of ZEFESREREZZERF - REZE
directors at general meetings. During the year ended 31 December 2020F12 A1 HIEFE  EF g 2HEMKI
2020, there was no change in the composition of the Board. mEE) -

Annual Report 2020 FE & 33



34

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the table

RAZESHRNESRARK (WER)
AREREANE

R ERMRE

EECRERTOEERTAUZTFANEX
FED.3. MEFTE A BREE ©

FAR - EFTEERAARAZEEEIRK
RRER BEFRSAEEABZEIR
FESERER  ARREETERERMR
T ABTERETRNEEEEEINARE
SEEERATRINEEE AREREZK
REER -

EERZEEREHFETE

REEHFEEHZE2020F12 A31 B L FEE
THEESNEEZECHUNAEART]
R A SN HECEEE SN T & ¢

Attendance/Number of Meetings

below:

Nomination
Name of Director Board Committee
BEEnE Exg REZRE
Mr. Ng Wai Man 4/4 1/1
REREE
Mr. Chong Yat Chin 4/4 -
HEELE
Ms. Chan Wan Ming 4/4 _
BR=BrL
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 4/4 1/1
BIHREE
Mr. Feng Jianping 4/4 1/1
BT EE
Mr. Hou Xiaoming 4/4 1/1
REALE
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HIE/ EEAE
Remuneration Audit Annual General
Committee Committee Meeting
FMZEE ENZEE REEFAS
11 - 1/1
- - 1/1
- - 1/1
11 2/2 1/1
11 2/2 1/1
11 2/2 1/1
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of other directors during the year.

Independent non-executive directors have attended general
meetings to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the
view of shareholders.

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least
14 days before the meeting. For other Board meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before
each Board meeting to keep directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management where necessary.

The secretary of the meeting is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and final versions are open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or
a director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association
contain provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting and not
to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness to safeguard interests of shareholders, customers,
employees and the Group’s assets. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading
the management and overseeing their design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
have been developed with the following principles, features and
processes:

—
—

) ldentify significant risks in the Group’s operation environment;

(2)  Evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group’s business
and the likelihood of occurrence;

(8) Determine the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks; and

(4)  Perform ongoing monitoring, review and revise the strategies
and processes in case of any significant change of situation,
ensuring effective communication to the Audit Committee and
the Board on all findings and the effectiveness of the systems
regularly.

The Internal Audit Department as well as the external professional
firm engaged by the Company for providing the internal audit
function are responsible for performing independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems. The Internal Audit Department with the support
of the external professional firm examined key issues in relation to
the accounting practices and all material controls and provided
its findings and recommendations for improvement to the Audit
Committee.
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The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including
major financial, operational and compliance controls, as well as risk
management functions, for the year ended 31 December 2020,
and considered that such systems are effective and adequate.
The annual review also covered the resources, staff qualifications
and experiences, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions, which
also considered to be adequate. In addition, the management
has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information according to internal procedures and policy so as to
ensure inside information remains confidential until the disclosure of
such information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination
of such information is efficiently and consistently made.

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the share price and/or trading
volume and decides whether the relevant information is considered
inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon as reasonably
practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing
Rules and the Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Group has strictly prohibited
unauthorized use of confidential or inside information and has
established and implemented procedures for responding to external
enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that only the executive
directors and company secretary are authorized to communicate
with parties outside the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
the reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 59 to 65.

Where appropriate, a statement from the Audit Committee
explaining its recommendation regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor and the
reasons why the Board has taken a different view from that of the
Audit Committee.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration paid/

payable to the Company’s external auditor, Ernst & Young, in
respect of audit services and non-audit services is set out below:

Service Category

A\
TRERRE

NI A S0 B 2 A BB i

REZE2020F12A31BIEFE » BiZH
BR# N IE R SRS B e T AR RSN
BEAZ BhAD 22 ok & 5T B E 5 AT 2 Bl & 71 an
™

Fees Paid/Payable (HK$)

BRI ERI et EAERGET)
Audit Services ZE RS
— Annual audit —FEER 1,480,000
~ Independent letter on continuing —BRABBHEZSN
connected transactions TN A BN R 20,000
Non-audit Services IEZEBRTS
— Taxation services — TRIEIRTS 150,000
1,650,000
COMPANY SECRETARY NEWE

Ms. CHUNG Sau Ming (“Ms. CHUNG”) has been appointed as the
Company’s company secretary.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary on corporate governance and board practices
and matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. CHUNG has
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder’s interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual director.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.
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CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
an extraordinary general meeting shall be called by the Board
on the written requisition of any one or more shareholders of the
Company, provided that such shareholder(s) held at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. Such meeting shall be called for the
transaction of any business specified in the written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company; and shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

There are no statutory provisions granting the right to shareholders
to put forward or move new resolutions at general meetings under
the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles of Association
of the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.
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CONTACT DETAILS BiETEtE

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned PRERATE @A T 75 Bk Pl 2 78

above to the following: RSk
Address: Unit No. 3, 18th Floor Wik - BB
Convention Plaza, Office Tower oy yakid
No. 1 Harbour Road SRESNAKNE
Hong Kong 1813 %
(For the attention of the Board of Directors/ (EANBESE NEE)
Company Secretary)
Fax: 2587 1338 {55 : 2587 1338

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send ABRERME REERSRERFERLAFE

the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, WEBEKER BENERAIERHMH
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address, except for (RIERME) & Lt (R A &S
the registered office of the Company, and provide their full name, BRBRIN) - WARHEERE - BEFBER
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Hin - AEBE - [RERERATERBIERE
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law. FRE T T LAKEE -

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND HERRREBEEEZER

INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with RAFIRAE - BREFIEBE MNAERE
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and ERAEE I BARRSREEETRLTHRA
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance EEZEBRRAERBMEEBEEEZ - K

and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of ANEIMAREREE AR ERIERAE REK
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which BEEAFERN CEEME - RBERRER
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment BEEEIELREFIRERTE o

decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for RARlzRERAESRHE—EFE  HES
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The QHRRETER EESFRMREE
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination B FHZESRERZESZEEL
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or, (RERFER)HEEZES g MK 8 &k (#E
in their absence, other members of the respective committees BBy EELZEeT R A RREARE LD
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board FERIRE o

committee, are available to answer questions at shareholder
meetings.
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To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.dragoncrown.com, where up-to-date
information and updates on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information and other information are
available for public access.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication
Policy to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure
its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on payment of
dividends (“Dividend Policy”). Depending on the financial conditions
of the Company and the Group and the conditions and factors as
set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or
declared by the Board during a financial year and any final dividend
for a financial year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.
Details of the Dividend Policy have been disclosed on pages 43 to
58 of the Directors’ Report of this annual report.
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The Board has pleasure in presenting its report together with the
audited financial statements of Dragon Crown Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements. There was no significant change
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 66 to 69.

An interim dividend of HK1.8 cents (2019: HK1.5 cents) per share
was paid on 30 September 2020.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy with effect from 20
December 2018. Subject to the relevant laws and the Articles of
Association of the Company, the Company, through a general
meeting, may declare dividends in any currency but no dividend
shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by the
Board.

Dividends may be declared and paid out of profit, or from any
reserve set aside from profits, share premium account or any
other fund or account which can be authorised for this purpose in
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and
the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Company’s ability to declare and pay dividends will depend
on the availability of dividends received from its subsidiaries,
including its subsidiaries in the PRC. For the purpose of declaration
of dividend, the amount which the Company and its subsidiaries
can legally distribute by way of dividend is reference to the profits
as reflected in their PRC statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with PRC generally accepted accounting practices.
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Declaration of dividend is subject to the discretion of the Board,
taking into consideration of, among others, the following factors:

° operations and earnings;

° business development;

° capital requirements and surplus;

° market conditions and general financial conditions;

. contractual restrictions (if any); and

° any other factors that the Board consider appropriate.

Subject to the availability of the Company’s cash and distributable
reserves, investment requirements, cashflows and working capital
requirements and the approval of the shareholders of the Company,
where dividend is being declared in any particular financial year,
the total amount of payment shall be approximately 40% of any
net distributable profits derived from ordinary activities during such
given financial year.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK3.0 cents (2019: HK1.0 cent) per share for the year ended 31
December 2020 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on
Monday, 7 June 2021. The proposed final dividend is subject to
the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development and the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 21 which form part of the
Directors’ Report. An analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Financial and Operating Highlights on page 2 which forms
part of the Directors’ Report but not part of the audited financial
statements. No important event affecting the Group has occurred
since the end of the financial year under review.
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The Group is committed to supporting environmental sustainability.
Being an integrated service provider that specialized in the handling
and storage of liquid petrochemical products in the PRC, the Group
is subject to various environmental laws and regulations set by the
PRC national, provincial and municipal governments. These include
regulations on air and noise pollutions and petrochemical storage.

During the year under review, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on the
operations of the Group.

The Group recognises that our employees, customers and
business partners are the keys to our sustainable development. The
Group is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship
with our employees, providing quality services to our customers
and enhancing cooperation with our business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group fulfils its social responsibilities of protecting the
environment by undertaking to promote social environmental
protection in our business routines and activities. We give due
consideration to environmental protection and conservation and
incorporates environmentally friendly practices and measures into
our daily course of business.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules, the Company
will publish an Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report within three months after the publication of this annual
report in compliance with the provisions set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2020 are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the Company
during the year. Please refer to note 26 to the financial statements
for details.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands amounted to HK$622.3 million (2019:
HK$571.4 million), of which HK$36.6 million has been proposed as
a final dividend for the year. In accordance with the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, dividend may be paid out of the amount of
HK$553.9 million (2019: HK$553.9 million) of the Company’s share
premium account subject to a solvency test and the provisions of
the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the total revenue to the Group’s top five customers
and largest customer accounted for 98.0% and 86.1% of the total
revenue for the year. The cost of services provided by the Group’s
top five suppliers and largest supplier accounted for 33.1% and
9.8% of the total cost of services for the year.

None of the directors or any of their associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had beneficial
interests in the Group’s top five suppliers or customers referred to
above.
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DIRECTORS =

The directors of the Company who were in office during the year RAFEREEARREAMILE - FRZA

and up to the date of this report were: NEEET

Executive directors: HITES

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) REBERIGA (EEFRITREE)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin HHERE

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming BR=IB A+

Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTES:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen IR HE

Mr. FENG Jianping BT EE

Mr. HOU Xiaoming REERR A

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the RIBEARFEBEIZAMANES4()E - 8
Company, Mr. CHONG Yat Chin and Mr. FENG Jianping are subject ERERBRFREARERERRBEFK
to retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting g rmFERE  WREEREEET -
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence RAFIEWR S B IERTES ZFEE
from each of its independent non-executive directors and at the VMR BERASBRERHRDRAREE
date of this report still considers them to be independent. AV

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS BEEZRBEN

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin has entered into a service contract with HHESEEBEARRRIZB2010F12 A1
the Company for a term of three years which commenced on AiBst - BHBEMIREE L o JAERA
1 December 2010. Mr. CHONG has entered into a renewal NalBR2014F4 A28 ERTAH 82013
contract with the Company on 2 April 2014 for a term of three FI2A1BRRABH=F AR SEEETE
years effective from 1 December 2013 and will continue thereafter R—F BHERS—AHFEL=ZEANER
for successive one-year terms until terminated with three months’ BARIEEH) -

notice in writing served as the other party.

Mr. FENG Jianping has entered into a service contract with the R FRAEREARNAEZRBEL - B
Company for a term of one year effective from 29 June 2018 201856 A29R R RI—4F - Hig g EE
and will continue thereafter for successive one-year terms until TR —F EEAA—FRS—HED
terminated by either party thereto by giving to the other not less POR—E AN ERBALIEEEL

than one month’s written notice.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual FREERREBF RS LEREETZE
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable F BB VEMTIR - FABHAEER
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, Ik mBARE CEERERIN 2RBEE
other than statutory compensation. %y o
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, the director
is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which he or she may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of his or her duties. To the extent provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the directors.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against directors of companies in the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and note 32 to the financial statements, no director
nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
the directors and the chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

(i) Interests in the shares of the Company

Personal
Name of directors interests
EEpRE 8 AR
Mr. Ng Wai Man (“Mr. NG”) RERFAE(TREE] 125,354,000
Mr. Chong Yat Chin ("Mr. CHONG") ~ HRZ L4 ([HELE)) 16,712,000
Ms. Chan Wan Ming BREBLtT 184,000
Notes:
1. All interests of the directors in the shares of the Company were long

positions.

2. Mr. NG was the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of
Lirun Limited (“Lirun”) and Sure Port Investments Limited (“Sure Port”)
and therefore was deemed to be interested in a total of 767,988,000
shares of the Company held by Lirun and Sure Port.
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(i) Long positions in the shares of associated corporations of the

Company
Name of associated

Name of directors corporation Capacity
EEHA HEEEER g4
Mr. NG Lirun Beneficial owner
REHE pabi:: EnEEA
Mr. NG Sure Port Beneficial owner
RHE B IIE EnEEA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, so far as was known to the directors of
the Company, the persons or corporations (other than directors
or chief executives of the Company) who had interests and short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:
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Name of shareholders Capacity held in the Company the Company
RARQ T RS HARATREEHE

RRERB g4 RAEBAR G EE TRASYES L

Lirun Beneficial owner® 751,488,000 61.56%

71 EmEEAQ

Mr. Ng Dan Ching Beneficial owner 117,040,000 9.59%

RBRE EnEEA

Notes: B

1. All interests of the substantial shareholders in the shares of the 1. TERBERRQARIIRMD Z B #EZRYE BT

Company were long position. Ao

2. Mr. NG was the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of Lirun
and therefore was deemed to be interested in a total of 751,488,000
shares of the Company held by Lirun.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the directors of
the Company were not aware of any other persons (other than the
directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above) who held any
interests or short positions in the shares, or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible participants
(including employees, executives or officers, directors including
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors,
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries) for their contribution to the
long term growth of the Group and to enable the Company to
attract and retain high calibre employees. During the year, no share
options were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme. There were no outstanding share
options under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2020.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the executive directors (collectively the “Covenantors”) have
entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Company
(on behalf of itself and the Group) dated 23 May 2011 (the “Deed”).
Pursuant to the Deed, each of the Covenantors shall procure that
their respective associates shall not directly or indirectly engage in
any business in competition with the existing business activity of
the Group. Relevant information on the Deed was disclosed in the
Prospectus in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders”.

The Company has received confirmations from the Covenantors
of their compliance with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors
declared that they have fully complied with the Deed for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The independent non-executive
directors have reviewed on the confirmations from the Covenantors
and concluded that the Deed has been complied with and has
been effectively enforced.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BERXS

The Group conducted the following non-exempt continuing REBRFNETUTIEREFERER
connected transactions during the year. Z o

The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction TRETZFFRBPFEIHN2020F 2

amounts of the non-exempt continuing transactions in 2020: FELRRERR S5 :
Annual cap Actual transaction amount
FELR ERZ 5%
Approx. Approx.
oL OE
Connected transactions Connected person (RMB'000)  (HK$'000) (RMB'000)  (HK$'000)
HER S BEAL (ARETR) (FEx) (AR%Trn) (FEn
(A) 2018 Ningbo Storage Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon
Agreement (Renewed) Crown Chemical International
Trade Company Ltd.
(“Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown”)
2018F ER T 1% (B 3A) ERRTEENM IERESERAR
(IERRIRRER]) 10,065 11,317 9,439 10,613

(B)  Ningbo Port Loading, Discharging and Ningbo Zhoushan Port Company Limited

Storage Agreement (Renewed) Zhen Hai Gang Bu Branch Company
(“Ningbo Zhenhai”)
BB R RS (S EA) ERALBRNERD REEBED AT
([EREE]) 4,250 4,779 3,095 3,480
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2018 Ningbo Storage Agreement (Renewed)

On 28 December 2018, Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo
FTZ Dragon Crown entered into the 2018 Ningbo Storage
Agreement (Renewed), pursuant to which Ningbo Ningxiang
agreed to provide Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown with terminal
and storage services at the Group’s terminal in Ningbo. The
term of the 2018 Ningbo Storage Agreement (Renewed)
is for the period of three years from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2021.

Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Dragon Crown Investments Limited which in turn is owned as
to 98% by Mr. NG, a director and a controlling shareholder
and as to 2% by Mr. CHONG, a director. It is principally
engaged in trading of chemicals. According to the Listing
Rules, Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown is an associate of Mr. NG
and thus a connected person. As Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown
is a connected person of the Company, the transactions
contemplated under the 2018 Ningbo Storage Agreement
(Renewed) constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules.

The fees for the services provided are principally determined
by () the quantity of the liquid chemical products handled by
Ningbo Ningxiang; and (i) the period for the storage of the
liquid chemical products at the terminal. The price will be
negotiated and agreed between both parties with reference to
the market price and the management will take into account
the price range charged by other service providers for the
same services within the port. This is to ensure that the terms
offered by Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown to Ningbo Ningxiang
are no less favorable than those offered by other independent
third parties in the ordinary course of business.
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Ningbo Port Loading, Discharging and Storage Agreement
(Renewed)

On 30 December 2019, Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo
Zhenhai entered into the Ningbo Port Loading, Discharging
and Storage Agreement (Renewed), pursuant to which
Ningbo Zhenhai agreed to provide Ningbo Ningxiang with
loading, discharging and storage services at the terminal in
Ningbo. The term of the Ningbo Port Loading, Discharging
and Storage Agreement (Renewed) is for the period from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

Ningbo Zhoushan Port Company Limited (“Ningbo Port”) is
a substantial shareholder of Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo
Xinxiang, owning 40% equity interests in Ningbo Ningxiang
and Ningbo Xinxiang. Each of Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo
Xinxiang is deemed to be a subsidiary of the Company under
the Listing Rules by virtue of being a subsidiary undertaking as
defined in schedule 1 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622).
Ningbo Port, being a substantial shareholder of subsidiaries
of the Company, is considered as a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Ningbo Zhenhai, being
a branch company of Ningbo Port, is also considered as a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

As Ningbo Zhenhai is a connected person of the Company,
the transactions contemplated under the Ningbo Port
Loading, Discharging and Storage Agreement (Renewed)
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules.
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The fees payable by the Group to Ningbo Zhenhai for the
services provided are principally determined by (i) the quantity
of the liquid chemical products handled and stored by Ningbo
Zhenhai; and (ii) the period for the storage of the liquid
chemical products at the terminal in Ningbo. The price will be
negotiated and agreed between both parties with reference
to the market price. The Group considered the following
factors in order of priority before the determination of the
fees payable by the Group to Ningbo Zhenhai under the
Ningbo Port Loading, Discharging and Storage Agreement
(Renewed):

i) Similar to Ningbo Zhenhai, Ningbo Ningxiang also
provides liquid chemical terminal and storage services
to its customers at the Group’s terminal in Ningbo.
Ningbo Ningxiang may purchase liquid chemical
terminal and storage service from third party suppliers
of liquid chemical terminal and storage services to
meet the demand from its customers from time to
time. The Group would ensure that the price payable
by the Group to Ningbo Zhenhai under the Ningbo
Port Loading, Discharging and Storage Agreement
(Renewed) is more favorable than the price offered by
Ningbo Ningxiang to its customers for the provision of
liquid chemical terminal and storage services with an
acceptable profit margin.

ii) By obtaining quotations from not less than two
Independent Third Parties suppliers of liquid chemical
terminal and storage services at the terminals in Ningbo
in the ordinary and usual course of business, the Group
would ensure that the price payable by the Group
to Ningbo Zhenhai under the Ningbo Port Loading,
Discharging and Storage Agreement (Renewed) is no
less favorable than the market prices.
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Since the Group is under no obligation to enter into any actual
transaction under the Ningbo Port Loading, Discharging
and Storage Agreement (Renewed) unless it is satisfied
that the price and terms of the proposed transactions
after considering the above factors, the Directors believe
that such procedures can ensure that the transactions
contemplated by the Ningbo Port Loading, Discharging and
Storage Agreement (Renewed) will be conducted on normal
commercial terms (including the prices) or on terms no less
favorable than those offered by Independent Third Parties.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have,
for the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed
the continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have
been entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of its business; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better; and (i)
according to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has not qualified its report in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group. A copy of the auditor’s letter confirming the matters
set out under Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 32
to the financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2020, it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.
AUDITOR

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for the reappointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

By order of the Board

Ng Wai Man
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

EY:

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DRAGON CROWN GROUP
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dragon
Crown Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 66 to 173, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial staterments
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BRENSEE(E

How our audit addressed KMHET MR
Key audit matter the key audit matter BRETEE I EETSEE
Impairment assessment of accounts receivable JE B 3 19 6 (B A1
As at 31 December 2020, | We obtained an understanding M2020F12A31H » | BB THRERRE
the Group recorded accounts | of management’s processes EEEGERENERT | AHAEREWE
receivable of HK$26,859,000, | relating to monitoring the 26,859,000/ 7T (& | AWM EIER 22
which represented approximately | collectability of accounts EERBEELNT% | Fo
7% of the current assets of the | receivable. TEEAMBHEES
Groups without any expected B([FEHEEFE]#E
credit loss (‘ECL”) allowance. The | In assessing the adequacy of the o BEEFEBYEEE | R LB EEES
Group determines impairment | ECL provision, we reviewed the BEEBAELTESE | BEB 2Rz &
losses by making debtor- | ageing analysis of the debtors EERIMAETRES | B ROABETE
specific assessment of ECL for | to identify potential collectability B YERESERE | HBARNBRBROITA

credit impaired debtors and has
established a provision matrix
that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment
for the remaining group of
debtors.

The estimation of impairment
losses of accounts receivable
is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis
of accounts receivable as well as
expectation of forward-looking
factors. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, taking
into consideration the current
creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor.
Accordingly, we identified this as
a key audit matter. Disclosures
for accounts receivable are
included in notes 4 and 20 to the
financial statements.

issues, reviewed data used in
management’s assessment of
default rates and assessed the
management’s assumptions
used in establishing the forward-
looking adjustments. In addition,
we discussed with management
about the status of significant
individual debtors’ balances and
management’s consideration of
the debtors’ specific profiles and
risks, reviewed settlement history
and assessed management’s
assumptions used to determine
the ECL provision. We also
requested direct confirmations
and considered settlement
subsequent to the year end.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT E

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee

in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Yee.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
GEBRER

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B=E FET T
REVENUE WA 6 238,148 229,849
Cost of services provided TR AR A AR (114,104) (116,621)
Gross profit el 124,044 113,228
Other income E A 7 30,959 16,476
Administrative expenses THAX (37,576) (46,149)
Finance costs BhE A 8 (6,242) (8,735)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAG & A 2 B 18
Associate FRNE]| (304) (379)
Joint ventures BEPE 12,585 (2,086)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE AR 9 123,466 72,355
Income tax FriE st 12 (31,724) (26,900)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 91,742 45,455
Attributable to: AT AL FEAG -
Owners of the Company PIN/NCIEZZ SN 83,916 38,787
Non-controlling interests FEPERR A 7,826 6,668
91,742 45,455
EARNINGS PER SHARE AAREBA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS EhEREF
OF THE COMPANY (HK cents) (&4l
Basic and diluted HEAREE 14 6.87 3.18

66 Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZEREGIRA A



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
reXHEWER

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A31 HILFE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 91,742 45,455
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) HftZmEW A~ (558)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be ~ FA & &R s FE3H
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent DEEIBRAEM
periods: ZEEA (BB :
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) FE{h — B & N B H A
of an associate 2HEWE(EE) 1,057 (310)
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) EhEELEEMEE
of joint ventures Wz, (E518) 30,314 (8,803)
Exchange differences related to BB EBES =5
foreign operations 32,973 (10,507)
64,344 (19,620)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FAEHEBARE
FOR THE YEAR 156,086 25,835
Attributable to: AT AT
Owners of the Company PIN/NCIEZZ SN 145,448 19,979
Non-controlling interests VTR HE A 10,638 5,856
156,086 25,835
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PBIRR R

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Gooadwill

Investment in an associate
Investments in joint ventures
Prepayments

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Accounts and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables, accruals and
contract liabilities

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES
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Notes

B E

15
16
17
18
19
21

20

21

23

24

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
469,867 474,184
48,776 37,308
1,210 1,210
17,983 17,219
525,089 486,695
336 2,563
6,784 7,251
1,070,045 1,026,430
3,175 3,147
31,593 32,504
40,907 34,652
288,400 243,198
364,075 313,501
19,856 23,903
85,922 54,652
7,685 7,072
113,463 85,627
250,612 227,874
1,320,657 1,254,304




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Contract liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Ng Wai Man
RER
Director

EF

FRBEE
AHRBRITREMER

BHERE
EERRE
R BERE
BERE

R
RATHER ARG ER

[EEN
G

FEER R

REEAE

=]

BRMBRRE

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
liEss FET FAT
24 100,455 148,441
23 23,667 26,461
25 4,615 3,394
128,737 178,296
1,191,920 1,076,008
26 122,063 122,063
28 1,020,020 908,825
1,142,083 1,030,888
49,837 45,120
1,191,920 1,076,008
Chong Yat Chin
HAE
Director
3
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2020

BZE2020F 12 A31 BIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FTARRARK
Exchange Non-
Share Share  Reserve Capital ~ fluctuation ~ Retained controling Total
capital ~ premium funds®  resenve reserve profits Total  interests equity
N

Bh RHEE  BEER  HEER BE  RER B #fRER  RRdg
Notg HKSO0D  HKSO0  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO0D  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKS00
s Thn Thn 7 Tin Tin Tin Tin Thn THn
(note 28(il)  (note28())  (note 28 i)
(Festomg)  (Ksbosq))  (hiseomgi)

At January 2020 RONE1 18 122,063 553908 16,075 0407 (0049 38284 1,030,888 45120 1,076,008
Proft forte year Ehiad - - - - - B 8306 L7 RN
Ottercompehensie ncome forheyear, — ERER2TUA
Share of otter compefiensie ncome Eit-FRE0AEY
of an associle 2EEE - - - - 1067 - 1067 - 1067
Shareof oer comprehensie ncome Eliagtsaf
ofjoint venures 2EEE - - - - W - M - WM
Exchenge ifeences reted o foregn Gl
operaions EizE - - - - et - 8t 28 %M
Tota comprahensive ncome forte year EREApNEE - - - - 61,52 06 145448 1063 156,066
Appropriaton o stattoryresene AiEh - - ™ - - (659 1] [} -
Fod 019 hierd NYERERE 1 - - - - -y (o -
It 2020 e EAERE 18 - - - - - e -
Diidend decerd tononconoling rteests S EEAERER 2 e - - - - - - S | B
At31 December 2020 RNERANA 122063 553,008 16,854 N4 5A63  dmree 1,142,083 087 119190
* The reserve funds include the share of reserves of an associate and * HEESOEEGN —HBEQARE
joint ventures of HK$5,008,000 (2019: HK$4,913,000). L ELEE5,008,0008 7T (20194 -

4,913,000/ 7T) °

**  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERERREERKEMBMRREA
HK$1,020,020,000 (2019: HK$908,825,000) in the consolidated MR A #E1,020,020,0007% 7T (20194 -
statement of financial position. 908,825,000/ 7T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Eguit%
REEREE

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

Attioutable fo owners of the Company

RATRENRR
Exchange Non-
Share Share  Resene Captll ~ fuctuaon ~ Refained contoling Totd
captdl  premium finds® 1BSENR 1BSENe profts Totd ngrests equty

HyE)
BhaR GRS  ENER B REEN B FPREE  ERUE
Nots GO0 HRSO00  HRSOD  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKSOWD
et i T TR TR TR ThR T TR TEn

Moie28()  ote28()  (rote 28

(i) (W) (Hioag)

=2
=+

At January 2019 R19E1R1R 122,063 53908 15402 0407 899 3% 106369 50214 1103908
Proftfor the year Ehigd| = = = = = 367 3,187 6,060 LY
Other comprehensive s for e year: EMApREER:
Shere of ot compefiensieloss -kt
of an associle 2EEE - - - - 310 - 310 - 310
Shareof oher comprefiensie oss Elinetsit
ofoit venfures 2EFE = - - - 6303 - 6303 - 3303
Eichange ferences rted o EREERn
foregn operaions EizE - - - - (06% - (0.6%) B2 (050
Tota comprehensive ncomelfoss)forthe e~ EAREUA/ (BE)4% - - - - (ie%y Wi 19919 56 %58
Appropriaon o stautoryresene A5ieRE - - 73 - - 1% ] 8 -
Fod 201 icend HiGERERE 1 - - - - Sy S
i 219 NigEsRERe 1 - - - - -8 (s R
Dhicend deckred fonon-controling meress SR EIEERER 258 - - - - - - S 1 T ]
At31 December 2019 R019E12A3A 1208 553,908" 16,075" 0407 (089" 8284 1030688 B10 1076008
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= 2= B
GERERER
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31 BILEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Loan interest income
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Share of profits and losses of:
Associate
Joint ventures

Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease in accounts and
bills receivables
Decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in other payables,
accruals and contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid
Interest paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

REEHEE
ZHRERE
BT BT A
LA TS IAFE
AR
RITABHA
BB A
W% - BB KRERE
e
EREEENE
BREYX  BEK
®iEAE B8
FEAER A KB 1R
NG

FERL, (g

G S EE
Ve

AR - e R EA
FEWGRIE R

HAbfEFRIA - FEAT
ERREHNEEY
m mA

REMBHRE
E&IRA
ERHE

REFPMFHRE

P T
e FEE

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZEREGIRA A

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B=E FET FET
123,466 72,355

6,242 8,735
7 (4,058) (4,167)
7 (9,790) (10,115)

9 50,750 51,451

9 6,314 3,673
9 644 3,084
304 379

(12,585) 2,086

161,287 127,481
157 (190)

2,760 16,885

3,745 3,063

(9,251) 2,633

158,698 149,872

(29,813) (28,678)

16(0) (282) (232)
128,603 120,962




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F 12 31 HIEFE

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B e FHET FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBELE
ACTIVITIES ZERERE
Purchases of items of property, BEYE BE
plant and equipment PET = (16,955) (9,824)
Proceeds from disposal of items of BEEME  BENMK
property, plant and equipment IHB 2 FifS50E 90 251
Increase in loans to a joint venture N —fEA b
Rt &R - (28,702)
Interest received BUFILE 4,058 4,167
Dividends received from joint ventures BUlEEERS 4,443 9,430
Net cash flows used in investing activities & )EENFTRIE &
mE SR (8,364) (24,678)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEHELE
ACTIVITIES ZEERE
New bank loans HBIRITER - 50,000
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITER (28,000) (28,000)
Dividends paid BERRE (34,177) (42,722)
Dividends paid to non-controlling AT T IR
interests R (5,997) (11,013)
Principal portion of lease payments SAHEERS IS 29(b) (5,401) (2,667)
Interest paid BHE (5,085) (7,503)
Net cash flows used in financing BB EBFTRE S
activities e (78,660) (41,905)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HERERER

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F 12 A31 HILFE

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B=E FET T
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERRE%EY
EQUIVALENTS B INFEEE 41,579 54,379
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ~RE#WZEE K
of year REZEY 243,198 194,872
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [EREFHHFTE » E5E
net 3,623 (6,053)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REXRZERE
END OF YEAR RBESZEEY 288,400 243,198
ANALYSIS OF BALANCESOF CASH BReRBESZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEERDAT
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHER 22 44,557 70,574
Time deposits with original maturity of BEVS R RERHIH
less than three months when acquired PR=MEARZ
TE BAfE 5K 22 243,843 172,624
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the HFIRGAEERERXR
consolidated statement of cash flows 2B MREEEY 288,400 243,198
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 16 July 2010 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business in Hong Kong is Unit No.3, 18th Floor, Convention
Plaza, Office Tower, No.1 Harbour Road, Hong Kong. The
Group is principally engaged in terminal storage and the
handling of liquid petrochemicals.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Lirun Limited, which is
a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2020 are as follows:

e ISR AR M

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

RAREEEFR

EAEEERARAR(TARREF])
RIEFASES A RVEN2010F7 A 16
BEMA L RE#REERAF - K
A A sE i 9 R FA Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands ° ZRA AR B £ 2L S S
R BEBBEEIRERESHAKN
118183 E - AEBEFENFREA
b iR R BRI TS -

RRBEZRR  ARRIREERR
BARRRBEBRES ((REERAR
BB EMRIZEREEIARAE
BRAA -

TRMBARZER

ARATMR2020512 A31 HH = EHt
BARFEWOT :

Place of Issued

incorporation/ ordinary/

registration registered

Name and business share capital
e/ BEf

£ BRI ES 3 LR /iR
Ocean Anead Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$100
ERABREE/ A 10057

Eaford Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1
RIRERRAT] ABURREE/BE 1%
Dragon Bussan Intemational Limited Hong Kong Ordinary US$600,000
ENERRAT % Non-voting deferred
1US$900,000 (note 4)

L RIR600,0005% T

ERZEET

#%900,0003% 7

(Rska)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company Principal activities
RAFRERE
BAl TEER
Direct Indirect
E# 3
100 - Investment holding
REER
= 100 Investment holding
REMBR
- 100 Investment holding
and provision of
marketing services
REBRRIRETS
HERMRS
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2020 are as follows: (continued)

Name

&R

Dragon Grown Petrochemicals
Terminal (Holdings) Limited
EARIRE(RE) ARAT

Dragon Source Industrial Limited
EMCTERAR

Nanjing Dragon Crown Liquid
Chemical Terminal Company
Limited (‘NJDC")

BREREl THEER
BRAR (TR

Ocean Access Investments Limited
BRERERAT

Overseas Hong Kong
Investment Limited

BIBRRAARAA

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
a7 AV
EaUES 3

Hong Kong
&t

Hong Kong
&t

The People’s Republic
of China ("PRC)/
Mainland China
hEARLAE

([ E) /HEmi

Hong Kong
&8

Hong Kong
&8

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
&

LR/ ERRE

Ordinary US$26,600,000
Non-voting deferred
US$500,000 note )

L#1R06,600,000% 7T
ERZEET
500,005 7t (Hzka)

Ordinary HK$26,000,000
Non-voting deferred
HK$2,000,000 (note a)
L3#7R06,000,000/57T
ERZREL
12,000,000t (HizEa)

US$52,254,820
52,254 820% T

HKS 1
A7

HK$10,000
10,0007

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZEREGIRA A

DNEREBER (E

FHENEARZERN R

ARATIR2020F12 31 B H = E K
BRRFBWT : (&

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
RARERE
BAlt
Direct Indirect

E& [}

= 100

= 90.01

Principal activities

TERH

Investment holding and
provision of finance and
management services

REERRRHSHRN
BRI

Investment holding and
provision of accounting
services

RASBRREE RS

Terminal storage and
handling of liquid chemicals

R EnE R R

Investment holding and
provision of administrative
and technical services

RARRRIE
TR B AR S

Investment holding and
provision of business
development services

RARREREEXBERRHY



2.1

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continuead)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Note:

(@) The non-voting deferred shares do not entitle the holders
thereof to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting of the respective companies. The holders of the non-
voting deferred shares are not entitled to any dividends. On a
winding-up, the holders of the non-voting deferred shares are
entitled, out of the surplus assets of the respective companies,
to a return of the capital paid up on the non-voting deferred
shares held by them to one half of the balance after a total
sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed in such
winding-up in respect of the ordinary shares of the respective
companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

mE TR A

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

NEREBER (E
HFHENEARZERN (B
P

(@) XK%LiHQT’ﬁI?ﬂiFT%EFﬁ%
ﬁ/\TE*‘MﬁZHXﬁ BARREASA
%D‘Rﬁf&ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁATﬁAALE
FoBEFREEROE AER
LBZHXTH—JH”E o RIBRK - BERE
BREROFHEBA  BEEEAR
RIBHREET BREBSAE

XKT%LiHQTﬁ@EZHX$ &
y%/ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁg B AR 5
K 4238100,000 000,000,0005%7%?&
BREH—DZ— -

BEERR LREW2ARTNMBER
RERUAFEREELEZENBK
AEBAFDEEFE - EERR
BB E AR BEBRN &
FHBRITTR -

mRELE

ZEPBRRIDBBEBREGAE
([BEEEAE ) B2 BENE
HEE([FRFBHREER ] (B
%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ;‘%ﬁﬁ“i&ifﬁﬁﬂ C BAER
'EH'JU%% AHER k) &
’AE%QJJ?E'J&E/ RAEVED 2B
E%%%Eﬁﬁiﬁ%” o % H T RER IR
SERRAERIRE - B R BEEAS %
FHMBHRIABITEY - MBS
YRBRERZOTAET °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A

2.1

RBLEXE (F

REHERE

RAVERRBEARRRKENBEA
A (FEME [ REE ) RELE2020F12
A31BIEFEZHH®E - HE AR
AARAREESHELHNEE (&
BEBHEER) - EASEH2HEE
BHREBMNZEEREAERR SN E
BREFIARREEBEIREH RO
(IWASEEER TREAENATER
BHREEEBNEE TR P EZ
Z ORI - BIEUSIEHIE

HARBERIEREFERAZH
MEEHREERELER - AIARE
ERFHEERDHRAHREHRNE
AREEE—UHRTERER &
&

(@ BEREHFHEMREREADN
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2.1

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1

mE TR A

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

REEE(E

ﬁ%%ﬁlﬁﬁiﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ&)\;zﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ’\ 7
BRARRIGER A M IR E R
£GP s H IR AL A
FESEANRRIMEERERE &
7 WA AXAREREERER
AR SEB 2R REHNEGS
AR B BB 8 -

i 5 B R 5 R BUR £ 3Pt = TR )
RAZET-BAHZREE @ AJAK
BestETDREIHRELNR - K
BRARGAEEDZ 2 (UEKE
ZHE) - RARKIERRERS -

WAEBEREA—FBHEB AR ZZES
- A2EUEBERO)ZMB AR ZE
E(EERE) REE - ()EA3EER
RS2 BEE RPN ERAARNZ
STEE R ZRE  WHERNOEWREHAD
AME - (VEAERBERENAAER
mﬁk% S E{r] AE A B pR ok B Al ©
EATREMB WA EBROAEH
BB TIRTER - REAEEE
ELEREEESBEMERNAER
BEESHOEZ BRI IRBEF o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A

22 EFBEEHRHE

KEBRRNFE 25 E R IR
N2018F B 2R BE R HEZE B AT 48
BEI BB IERELER -

BB R E LR
FIFRIERT

FRM R E R
FoE - HEE
FHERIF 395 I
BN BRESE
AIEBTIRIERT

FRM R EER
F16SRIER]

Eh e e
1 RRES
SEPERESH
2T

)t

FIFEBENE

2019 R &
(FRRTER4N)

BEAZEE



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 which are not relevant to the preparation of the
Group's financial statements, the nature and the impact of

the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 and
revised HKFRSs are described below:

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out a
comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting
and standard setting, and provides guidance for
preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance to all
parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities,
and updated definitions and recognition criteria
for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of
stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty
in financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not
a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein
override the concepts or requirements in any standard.
The Conceptual Framework did not have any significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.

2.2

mE TR A

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

B BRSBRINE(E

PRV EEZAS S IE’]EM‘%#&%IH%

&
=+ AERIE
7’5}%{ FIT9|\ §
FHRNEZ R

Bk ERIEOS - AT
E30%% R BB ISR 5 £ RIE
N B H20184F 81 75 #
ISR B A mEE

AMEE R

(@)

2018F B IR &2 #EZE ([HE
SANEZR ) BL B 7S S AN 2E R
ERHET —EBEHMS LAY
BHREREESTE —BNER
BURIRMIES] - MBIFTE AR
FRARELER - HERBIE
BRI E MM EMBERAF
Efc BRAEEMABEKRIL®
REFIES UREF TEH
EEMBBEEENERNGE
£ o ZENELRITEATER -

FE B E =TT 7 I
EFREER - BESIESRWIEE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e P HRRME

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed
to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable
of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition
of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired
process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to transactions or other
events that occurred on or after 1 January 2020. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A

22 SHBRRESBRKEGE

BEM B REENEIRE
AIREREIABHEEBERD
BIMES| - ZFERIER ¥
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T PARE-—BEBKEFE -
ZEEIBR TEHMISRHEE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising as
a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic. The
practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the pandemic and
only if (i) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (i) any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2021; and (jii) there is no substantive
change to other terms and conditions of the lease. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application permitted
and shall be applied retrospectively. The amendment
did not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality
will depend on the nature or magnitude of information,
or both. The amendments did not have any significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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e ISR AR

31 December 2020
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform-Phase 27

Amendments to HKFRS
9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
Associate or Joint Venture?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKFRS Insurance Contracts®

17

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current®®
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Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37  Onerous Contracts-Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?

Annual Improverments to Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRSs 2018-2020
accompanying HKFRS 16,

and HKAS 417
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2.3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements-
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October
2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

As a conseqguence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39
rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.
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31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or
a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively
to business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the
previous amendments which affect financial reporting when
an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an
alternative risk-free rate ("RFR"). The Phase 2 amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest
rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount
when accounting for changes in the basis for determining
the contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities,
if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements of
HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness.
The amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities
from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform
on an entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied
retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate the
comparative information.
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31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group had interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars based on the Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate as at 31 December 2020. If the
interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in
a future period, the Group will apply this practical expedient
upon the modification of these borrowings when the
“economically equivalent” criterion is met and expects that
no significant modification gain or loss will arise as a result of
applying the amendments to these changes.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.
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2.3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with
specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement
of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies
with those conditions at that date. Classification of a liability
is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments
also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only
to items of property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements in which the entity first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well
as contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group
are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendment. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

92

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continuead)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into any dissimilar accounting policies that may
exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates
or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is
included as part of the Group’s investments in associates or
joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

mE TR A

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

TESHEEBEE)

LR ZREE

REERBE AR REERENRE
MAREBGEMERRAR AR REES
EEUAREEEEEEFEYR - I
MR REER - EGTBEEBEZE
2 AlgRE - AEEEGES
NAIREGEEFEWEENEERAM
ZHBADRIRGEBRER RGE A
R SR ARER - 1o BEEE
BEHEERANBEARANEE R
BiEmk - NEBEgEE SR ER
SENFERREHRPER (HE
) - AEBEHEBEAFSEGED
(2 RR G FTESE B REE Y R E
BIRANEEFGHE QAT E & D
FEMIREEE - RSB EBIEERD
RN EE LT R ERIN o W
NRAIREG BEFEAEENEERETA
REERBENRIREEREREN
— &5 o

HRBERR 2 IRER /N LR
ZEREFHBRARER - AT GEH
ArERERELD - UMz - RIREH#
BREEDEANR - EEEMIBER
T REREEBERTNERTEN

HAEBENKRIEHIR - NEEZ
RAEERERTARERE - 1
REBRFENRARZEHRB LR
ARAEEENRAERRERER
KBHEMBRBENAAREZMIE
BN ER

Annual Report 2020 FE#H &

95



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

96

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings and structures 3.17%-19%
Motor vehicles 19%
Office equipment 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents the infrastructure of a
terminal under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains
a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease and non-lease component on
the basis of their stand-alone prices. A practical expedient is
available to a lessee, which the Group has adopted, not to
separate non-lease components and to account for the lease
and the associated non-lease components (e.g., property
management services for leases of properties) as a single
lease component.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Where
applicable, the cost of a right-of-use asset also includes
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:
Leasehold land 45 to 50 years

Buildings and structures 2 to 3 years
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(@)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include
the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the
lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or
a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for
leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-
by-lease basis. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of accounts receivable that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Accounts receivable that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

e ISR AR M

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

TESHEEBEE)

RERHEMERMEE
VIR R E

TREENVITHEIAR DB RERR
BN - BonEFFARMEEK
s MRARE ABSTE

RNEHERE - £REED BEORR
TREENARNRSREFH MASK
BERZEFEREENZEBEN B
DIZS3E DN DR SL IR N
ERTHBEAREK D FEBRE
HIDER B FIRS - REBTHZ
HERAREMUREIFZAAEFER
HEFHTABRENEREE) RFHK
AEFESHMEE - I P X WARER
PREIR - WEEBARER D HAE
0 R LUt FE A B E T AR R IR
TR B BW K MEERF1GRET
MRS ERTE -

RECRHEERBHENALRAAE
AR EMRSETOELE
FELMABRERINREERAEZRA
EMB (A& EFEXN)NBRER
B -BHERETARAS RAEM
ZEMEE - HUAAREBERABE
ETOELFE  TwEEBEAN
fa] »

Annual Report 2020 FE#H &

103



104

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continueq)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
accounts receivable and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect
of a significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

For accounts receivable that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Inventories

Inventories represent consumables, tools and parts for use
in the operation, and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continueq)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, an associate and
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continueq)

Dividend income derived from the Company’s subsidiaries,
associate and joint ventures in Mainland China is subject to a
withholding tax under the prevailing tax rules and regulations
of the PRC.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient
in HKFRS 15.

Provision of terminal storage and handling services of liquid
chemicals

Revenue from the provision of terminal storage and handling
services of liquid chemicals is recognised (i) over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis over contract terms
because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group, or (i) over time, using an
input method, because the input method recognises revenue
based on the proportion of the throughput volume incurred
relative to the service rendered by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e. transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits-pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries, associate
and joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of those entities comprising the Group in
which their functional currencies are currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
those entities which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IFESHBE#MEEE)
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued) BEAL(E

or %

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following b)) EBEFTAER MFAFENATE
conditions applies: :

()  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZEBHEASEBR %
same group; BB AT

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy ZERAZERNEEZE
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow DA AEEDRE (KZE
subsidiary of the other entity); BHTAR - WBARK

RSB BAR)

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) ZREBRASEHRFR—
same third party; FE-MEERE

(v) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy ZEBRF=-TERNAS
the other entity is an associate of the third entity; Bh¥E MB—EBEAZ

F=HEBEMNBEAT

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for V) ZEBLABEBENFE -
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an ZitgNEmARAEE
entity related to the Group; AR EB AN E RN

(v  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a V) HEBX@MBEAIALE
person identified in (a); Hll gk 2 RS

(vl a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (Vi) R (@)FTEAIATHZE
influence over the entity or is a member of the BEEAVELBZERS
key management personnel of the entity (or of a (HZEBHRREEE
parent of the entity); and BAEMER—HEKE

&

(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it (vii) EBESNEHFTEE BT
is a part, provides key management personnel E)?E\’Aﬂﬁﬂi‘%@‘kzﬁ‘%
services to the Group or to the parent of the BN ARRETEEE
Group. ANB PR o
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of each reporting period.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions are required in determining
income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period, are described below.

e ISR AR M

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

EXRSEHIE R A5

AEEMBHRRNBRERETEER
EHRERRIELEFERM2REA -
X  BERBENSHE  URIR
BERENHE - A RER - %F
SR NEET TN HEEEA R B HHE
EHARIZENEEXRBNERE
BEFHERFE -

H R
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-
of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite
life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and
at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposal of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
accounts receivable. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type). The
provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

EXSEHE R A5 (E

fhst B RREE M (4

& AEEBE

AEERESEREBRFERHES
REE(BREAEEE) REHEIM
HETR - ERFHNEVEERS
FRRFEZIR 2 E M REEITR
BRI - HFeMEERBIRE
TR R T B P RE A MR B BRI SURUE -
BEREIHcEABUZREERLY
Humpemik (AR ERKE
RAREEREBEENKSE) - AlH
BRME - 2AERHERARNTIRER
UEENRFR BT IEELHR A HE
EXHABNBBHAIBRMISER
BMEEBEZEERAMAE < 518
EREER BEEEFEMATEENL
ReELBUNEMARESRE
AEBBEMBENNRE - UFTHE
BenEMHRE -

JEW SR TRR I B 1R 1

ER B AR B R AR fE A B R W BR R A
BHMEEEE - BBXDERAEAR
e REN (BlirE PRSI D) M~
RAEFLMEABMBERETE - B
EENIPERASEBEERMGE
HRMERE - AEBEKAREM - &
NIZAE M ER A AT EREERLE
B NERELH  BEBEMBE
HRETEH - WOMATE LGS
) o



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable
(continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s accounts receivable is disclosed in
note 20 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

No separate analysis of segment information is presented by
the Group as over 90% of the Group’s revenue, results and
assets are related to the terminal storage and handling of
liquid petrochemicals business in Mainland China.

Revenue from a major customer, whose entities shown below
are within the same group and with revenue in aggregate
amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue, is set out

below:

Customer A ZEA
Customer B =FB
Customer C EFC
Customer D ZFED

The above entities were merged and absorbed into one entity
in 2019.

mE TR A

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

BAREHE R (E

st RREEM (2

JEW SR TRRE BB 1R 1 (&)

HBEEEMEEAE - AR

R TERME B EE 2 e s T
WARHEBEANGE - BHEEEES
BEIRIE RTBROEMR R AEE
BU% - AREEBTEEEIBLRKIE
REEBEARR IR BEER R B P BEH
ERENBN - BERNEEEKIRR
TREME EE BN E R BRI Rk M
FE20 FE o

MR AEEERI0%MBA - FER
BERBNTEAMRE LM
SEFFMEERBER - SAKEL
B2 #ERH BT o

KEEHEMAREBERA10% A LR
FEXFHTXMREEER %
&) U ASFIET

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FA&T
205,043 144,770
- 38,430
- 11,100
- 4,443
205,043 198,743

ERN2019F T &t A —1E

o

\;
i

o -
i
i}
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ml_\éﬁ.\zti%ﬁ'%%lgﬂ.i

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

6. REVENUE 6. A
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADITEAT -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFPEHZWA 238,148 229,849

All the revenue from contracts with customers is derived from
Mainland China and recognised over time.

PIERBEFAMNZIRABEERT
B A2t 20 P s S AR

() Disaggregated revenue information from revenue (i) XEEXZFAHZWADIFKRA
from contracts with customers &
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Business activities HEHEE
Terminal storage services IS SR RS 133,438 133,386
Handling services FRIE AR A% 104,710 96,463
Total revenue from contracts REBEFEHZWALE
with customers 238,148 229,849

Revenue recognised in the current reporting period that
was included in contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period is as follows:

A5 HEERH KA SRR
BERIEFAGNABLT :

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FBT FAET
Provision of the terminal storage and RERECERISERET
handling services of liquid chemicals PSEREL TS 4,674 5,404

124
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

6. REVENUE (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligation

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 30 days from the date of billing.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or

e ISR AR M

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

6. WAEZE

(ii)

BHREE

BHETERBREN —BRE
RAZEK - PN REER S
RERFARKNI0ORA -

W12A318 * DEREHTELD
BEECRERSE D REK) A

partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows: RSERSENAT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Amounts expected to be EHRERANGE S
recognised as revenue:

Within one year —FR 5,011 4,650
After one year —Fi% 23,667 26,461
28,678 31,111

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations which are expected
to be recognised as revenue after one year relate to
terminal storage services and handling services. All the
other amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations are expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts
disclosed above do not include variable consideration
which is constrained.

BFHR - FRERRBADE
THRHHENEEINRSHERS
R B A SR 7 AR 7% K BRI BR 7S
Bl - AR R THTH
BHEEINRSERSERY
R—F AR S - LA
BRENSEL TEREZLIRD
AIERE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

7. OTHER INCOME

An analysis of other income is as follows:

Bank interest income
Gross rental income
Loan interest income from a joint venture

Government grants

Foreign exchange gains, net
Others

8. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans
Interest on lease liabilities

RITHEHA

i PN
KE—HEELEZ
BB A
B Fi B

B 5E st - FER
Hit

RITEFANFE
HEBEMNFE

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERERA A

S
HARA ST
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT Fis
4,058 4,167
854 838
9,790 10,115
1,169 52
12,628 =
2,460 1,304
30,959 16,476
A A
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$000
FiB7 Fis
5,960 8,503
282 232
6,242 8,735




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities
Auditor’s remuneration
Directors’ remuneration
Staff costs (excluding directors’
remuneration):
Wages, salaries and other
benefits
Pension scheme contributions*

Gross rental income
Less: Outgoings

Loss on disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment
Foreign exchange losses/(gains), net

VE  BERREITE

CRAEEENE

YENAHEREEE
ZHEMNRK

BB

EEME

BIRA
(TEREEZHS) -

TE - HFHrekH RN

RIREF IR

i ONE
B X

REWF - BFEkEE
REZEE

[E S EiE, (W) - FER

* As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension schemes in future years (2019: Nil).

e ISR AR M

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

BRBE AT

BBADEF MG GEA)

Notes

B aE

15

16(a)

16(c)

10

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
50,750 51,451
6,314 3,673
8,278 11,142
1,480 1,480
4,601 4,541
25,436 25,050
2,652 4,328
28,088 20,378
(854) (838)
43 42
811) (796)
644 3,084
(12,628) 2,496

2020612 A31H » AEE W EZ
W AR FER ARR D HR
KL IR (20195 : ) -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules"), section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies

10. EEEE

BEEEHARSMARARES L
mRRAI([ EmEA)]) ~ BERREG
2£383(1)(a) * (b) * (c) (NI KA R]
(BREZFZER) ROIFE2BHEE

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of MAFEEEMSUT
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT T
Fees: W
— Executive directors —HITES - =
— Independent non-executive directors —BNIEMITES 720 675
Other emoluments of executive directors:  #hiTEEH i HEN
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEBEYREF 3,845 3,830
Pension scheme contributions RIREBETEIHR 36 36
4,601 4,541
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
¢ 28 Bife
ok RENEA SRR aEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TER TER FEx
2020
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Ng Wai Man REREE - - - -
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HBEELE - 1,985 18 2,003
Ms. Chan Wan Ming =Bt - 1,860 18 1,878
- 3,845 36 3,881
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEME(E
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
Eo = Y
e REMER AN B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TAL TAT AT
2019
Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Ng Wai Man RERESE - - - -
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HHELE = 1,980 18 1,998
Ms. Chan Wan Ming B=BaT - 1,850 18 1,868
- 3,830 36 3,866
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors of the FAMARRIBULIENTESI T2
Company during the year were as follows: wWEWT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 2UBIRFEE 240 240
Mr. Feng Jianping RS AE 240 240
Mr. Hou Xiaoming ERER LA
(appointed on 1 July 2019) (201957 A1 BEZT) 240 120
Mr. Zhu Wujun KREFSLAE
(resigned on 1 July 2019) (R2019%7 A1 HEHD) - 75
720 675
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FABEEM B I TE S H R
non-executive directors during the year (2019: Nil). B (20194F : &) o
Save as disclosed above, no remuneration was paid or B EXAIREEIN  AEERNFAL
payable by the Group to the directors of the Company during BEFENHENARRESTOMNE
the year (2019: Nil). (2019%F : &)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

11.

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year (2019: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2019: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2019: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining three (2019: three) highest paid employees
who are not directors of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions RREFTEIHR

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

0Z1,000,000787T
1,000,001 TE
1,500,000/ 7T

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year (2019: Nil).

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A

10.

11.

e RMREYMER

FA - AEBEWELEMDREAAR
RAEENHE - ER/IMARKER
BERERMARNEEIROBERIFE
(2019%F - &) -

RAFEER - HEESHEKFR BN
REAMEEO L Q019F : F) -

IEBEFMES

RAFERNAER=TMHES BEM
% (2019F : MB)ES - HFHMEF
BEER EXHFE10 - 2 T =4 (2019
F =R UIARAESHESH
FilfE B M FRFBEFIBEIIAT ¢

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRET TET
3,303 3,220

88 35

3,391 3,255

FMNF TIIEENE =R H
BREMHBLLT :

Number of employees

EEWEE
2020 2019
- 1
3 2
3 3

AREBRANEE R EEATE M HE
NHEREEHMESNME - FRN
AR B BB SN A S B{R B B
TRE(E (20195 : &) o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RMEE

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

INCOME TAX 12. Fri8Hi
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FAT
Current — Hong Kong BNER— &
Charge for the year REF T H 98 48
Overprovision in prior years B SRR (48) (24)
Current — Elsewhere BNER— E Atbth 75
Charge for the year REEF T H 26,590 21,644
Underprovision in prior years BEFERENR 250 144
Deferred (note 25) IRIE (F13E25) 4,834 5,088
Total tax charge for the year REEBIAY N85 31,724 26,900
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BEBFNEHIDIRBEFEAEBBEED
(2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising fhETIE R T #916.5% (20194 -
in Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of 16.5%) B EE1R - WASE R —FHM
the Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered BARIRIN - AR RS MRS F
profits tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2019: BRBREGENES - ZMBARE
HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this subsidiary are 2EEBIL (20196 2B BB L) W E
taxed at 8.25% (2019: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable R a1 1%28.25% (20194F : 8.25%)
profits are taxed at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%). RO R B - E AR IR R Bl m A B 4%
16.5% (20194 : 16.5%) KBl K&
Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been IR ER B E B A = T 1S B0 FEER B
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in Mainland China wEAMBERBRITER - 2ERIEN -
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, LHRBIAH A IR T R G B HIE -

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

12. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which
the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax

12. Fr8#i (&)

BARRAREWEB AR MEREER
BATE B R 5T B E AR BR A B A
MBER S RN EEERRRAE

position at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows: HIARTAT B ERRA T
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
58 T E At st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx FEx
2020
Profit before tax BB A A 16,665 106,801 123,466
Tax at the applicable tax rates ERTEGERTIR 2,725 26,700 29,425
Income not subject to tax B/RGRHUBA (4,311) - (4,311)
Expense not deductible for tax AR BIF X 1,286 756 2,042
Tax loss utilised EEAMIEERE (56) - (56)
Tax loss not recognised REERBIIEEE 2,480 - 2,480
Adjustments in respect of current BEFEREIE
tax of previous years A (48) 250 202
Effect of withholding tax on the ANER B R B A3 B
distributable profits of the Group’s AR BEARR
Mainland China subsidiary, HBEDEADE
associate and joint ventures iR 0} - 3,968 3,968
Profits and losses attributable to BEER—FHEEAT
joint ventures and an associate FEME R A R &8 (2,026) - (2,026)
Tax charge for the year RNEERIERS 50 31,674 31,724
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31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

12. INCOME TAX (continued) 12. FiE®i (&

Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
BE B i et
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT FHIT
2019
Profit/(loss) before tax BREBATEM, (B518) (17,679) 90,034 72,355
Tax at the applicable tax rates E AR R ERNTIE (2,928) 22,508 19,580
Income not subject to tax BERBIA (2,418) = (2,418)
Expense not deductible for tax AR 2,140 10 2,150
Tax loss utilised EEATIEEE (50) - (50)
Tax loss not recognised RERBIEEE 2,897 = 2,897
Adjustments in respect of current B SR HAT I
tax of previous years R (24) 144 120
Effect of withholding tax on the NEE P B A B
distributable profits of the Group’s AAE > BEAER
Mainland China subsidiary, BEDERDR
associate and joint ventures EARTENR 2 - 4,214 4,214
Profits and losses attributable to HEPER—HEBE AT
joint ventures and an associate e A & 518 407 = 407
Tax charge for the year REEHIBEFEZ 24 26,876 26,900

The share of tax attributable to joint ventures of
HK$3,573,000 (2019: HK$1,451,000) is included in share
of profits and losses of joint ventures in the consolidated

FE(h& &R AS,573,0008 T
(20194 : 1,451,000/87T) * B A
REBRRANELEELEZRT R
BiEF - AFEWEEL—BHBHEA
FIFTE (20194 : £8) o

statement of profit or loss. No share of tax was attributable to
an associate in the current year (2019: Nil).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

13. DIVIDENDS 13. KE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FH&T
Interim dividend — HK1.8 cents EIR B — TR B
(2019: HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share 1,871l (20194F : 1.5784l) 21,971 18,309
Proposed final dividend — HK3.0 cents EEARHRE —SRTEk
(2019: HK1.0 cent) per ordinary share 3.0l (20194F : 1.071L) 36,619 12,206
58,590 30,515
The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 HZE2020F12 A1 B IEFEWME:S
December 2020 is subject to the approval of the Company’s REAR EZEREERRAFERE L&
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. BARRNBIIRRALAE ©

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERERA A



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

Earnings ZF|

Profit attributable to owners EIN/NETE 2PN 3
of the Company, used in the basic R F - ARETE
earnings per share calculation BRERZF

Shares idvi)

Number of ordinary shares of the Company ZANA &) B 317 @M
in issue, used in the basic earnings AREL - ARETE
per share calculation BREARZA

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

14.

e ISR AR M

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

RRAREBAEBEERER

BREABNZATER

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTER TAT
83,916 38,787

Number of shares

KA E
2020 2019

1,220,628,000 1,220,628,000

REE2020F &2019F12 A318 1
FE - AEETEBEHECRITE
% -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

Cost:

At 1 January 2019
Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2019
and 1 January 2020

Addltions

Transfers

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020

At 1 January 2019

Provided for during the
year - note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2019
and 1 January 2020

Provided for during the
year - note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020

Net carrying amount:

At 31 December 2020
At 31 December 2019

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A
201951 A1A
hE
B
RE
5 A
2019612R31H

R2020%1 A1A

HE
B
RE
AR
20205124318

Accumulated depreciation: 23t :

12019F1A1H
FREE -

RE

iR

R2019%F12A318 &
20201 1R

FRRHE -

RE
[ 5 %
12020124318

FEFE:
120205128318

120195128318

15. Y% BERRE

Construction  Buildings and Motor Office
in progress structures vehicles equipment Total
EEIE BTREEW RE BRERE #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT TAT TAT Thx
2,136 956,762 4,652 1,623 965,173
6,453 4,977 - 10 11,440
(7,484) 7,484 = - -
- (8,022) - (257) (8,279)
(29) (16,861) (81) (20) (16,985)
1,082 944,340 4,57 1,356 951,349
13,582 5,480 - 122 19,184
(2,932) 2,932 - - -
- (2,478) (378) - (2,856)
665 59,138 261 76 60,140
12,397 1,009,412 4,454 1,554 1,027,817
- 433,581 3,904 1,473 438,958
- 51,142 246 63 51,451
- (4,687) - (257) (4,944
- (8,208) (72) (20) (8,300)
- 471,828 4,078 1,259 477,165
- 50,538 167 45 50,750
- (1,763) (359) - (2,122)
- 31,845 241 14 32,157
- 552,448 4,127 1,375 557,950
12,397 456,964 327 179 469,867
1,082 472,512 493 97 474,184

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

16. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings
and structures used in its operations. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land leases.
Leases of buildings and structures generally have lease terms
between 2 and 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the
Group.

(@) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are as follows:

At 1 January 2019 720191 A1H

Additions NE

Depreciation charge FERX

Exchange realignment HE AR

As at 31 December 2019 and 7201912 A318 &
1 January 2020 20201 H1H

Additions NE

Depreciation charge FEMX

Exchange realignment HE 5, SRR

At 31 December 2020 1202012 H31H

e ISR AR M

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

16. AE
REBEEREEA
AEEERNEEBEENET RE
EYZEBEMNHEESL - EIRAIME
B RN REFRERE L
- HEIAS0F - MBIEZE L
HEMKR - BTSEEZ (AR
IH - BFRBZEYHEBBEN T2
E3F o —RiME ' AEETA RA
SEDINNTEZERDHEBEEE o
(@ EFAESE
AEBEFAFREEENERT
BEREFHINT :
Buildings
and Leasehold
structures land Total
BFR
EEY HELib st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FHT THET
5,612 34,305 39,917
1,658 - 1,658
(2,775) (898) (8,673)
(11) (583) (594)
4,484 32,824 37,308
15,111 - 15,111
(5,425) (889) (6,314)
696 1,975 2,671
14,866 33,910 48,776

Annual Report 2020 FE#H &




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

16. LEASES (continued) 16. HE (2
The Group as a lessee (continued) REBEREBA(E
(b)  Lease liabilities b) HEEE

FABEERE (BEERITR
HMEE)IREERZEH N

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the

movements during the year are as follows: ™
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
At 1 January ®1A1R 4,593 5,612
New leases EE 15,111 1,658
Accretion of interest recognised FREHERFEILE
during the year 282 232
Payments (NEN (5,683) (2,899)
Exchange realignment P H A 699 (10)
At 31 December M12A31H 15,002 4,593
Analysed into: DA
Current portion mENE S 14,172 2,652
Non-current portion EMRENEL 830 1,941

FEa B E D MR %R
RIFE24 N34 E -

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
notes 24 and 34 to the financial statements.

© iRz ERNEEMEANEA

(¢)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

leases are as follows: R
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 282 232
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets & FAEEEITEE A 6,314 3,673
Expense relating to short-term leases and 252 BAFH & & #4 T AHER R
other leases with remaining lease terms 2019412 531 H sk 2 Al
ended on or before 31 December 2019 fEmAEMHER #
EnliEb-a 8,278 11,142
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 18 %5 F1 52 7K I8 4458 14,874 15,047
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

16. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continueq)

(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note
29(c) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases a certain portion of its office building under
an operating lease arrangement. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised
by the Group during the year was HK$854,000 (2019:
HK$838,000), details of which are included in note 7 to the
financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenant are as follows:

Within one year —FR
After one year but within two years
After two years but within three years

—F LA HEMFIAR
MEA LB =FUR

e ISR AR M

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

16. #HE(ZE

FEBEREBEAN(E)

@ HMENRSRE ARV BER
FMTTE29(c) B FE ©

REBEESHBEA

REERBCEHERHEHEEST
BHETHo - HRER—RERM
PXf#&Es  UERHATETHRIEE R
MRARES - FRAKENESHER
A& WA A854,0007 7T (20194 -
838,000 7T) + FHIBE MBI 15 3R M
FE7 o

MN2020512A31H - HEAREBIR
EHEERF Z A RESCEHERE
W ARBRIRFAEF BT ¢

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THAT
907 854

302 854

- 285

1,209 1,993
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17. GOODWILL

Cost and net carrying amount at the
beginning and end of the year BREVHE

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is related
to the cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the
handling of liquid chemicals. Its recoverable amount has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 7.8% (2019: 8.1%)
and cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using an inflation rate of 5% (2019: 5%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the handling of
liquid chemicals. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Inflation rate — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to cost of sales and the revenue price is the forecast price
indices during the budget year in the PRC.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A

FHRFERORAR

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ra SRR EE

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

17. BHE

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

TEx TAT

1,210 1,210
B Rl (E R

BREBEHEEZAESRREL
ERMEHERETREENREEES
i HoElemEEIZAIReREE
AIMEE 2 EREETE - MRER
S EEEREEEEZRT
WEEEmME - RenETRAEA
ZIIREAET7.8% (20194 : 8.1%) °
mEBhFHENESRERER
5% (20194F : 5%) Z AR EHEA o

AERESELBMREBICEnIGEAR
FREeENEREERZSIARKRR -
ATHAEEERAGTERSRETRE
AVETERERENRAZ ZBEER
5
THE—ERZIFTRRRRBAT - I
RELEBAREELEM 2K ER

g o
ZON

BRE-RARBENREBERHEK
ARBABROEESAEFEES
R TERIERIEEN -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—REBZE A TINIRE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FET
Share of net assets B EEFE 17,983 17,219
Particulars of the Group’s associate as at 31 December 2020 MR2020F12 A1 B AEE 2 B2 A
are as follows: AIMEROT ¢

Percentage of

Particulars Place of equity interest
of issued registration attributable to Principal
Name shares held and business the Group activities
BECRT &% rEEEMN
£8 RADF B FE R BREESL TEXK
Tianjin Tianlong Registered PRC/ 65 Terminal storage
Liquid Chemicals capital of Mainland and handling of
Storage and US$1,950,000 China liquid chemicals
Transportation Co., Ltd. * AfEAR R REN RELER
REAEREBCIMHE 1,950,000% 7T ISR ETT M
BRAE
# Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has t IRIRBZEIRZME - AEBHZE
significant influence but not unilateral control over this entity. BESATE  BEEITHIE-
The interest in the associate is indirectly held by the ROB A Rz ek A AN 1 Bl R B A
Company. G
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e BRI

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

18.

19.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information of the
Group’s associate:

18. R—HEBEQRNKRE (&

TEEAAREIHEAT MBS

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT F&T
Share of the associate’s loss for the year  JE{GEEZ A RIF A EE (304) (379
Share of the associate’s other JE(EEtE N A Hb2mE
comprehensive income/(l0ss) Wz, (B518) 1,057 (310)
Share of the associate’s total FEIREEE AT 2k
comprehensive income/(loss) (E518) e e 753 (689)
Aggregate carrying value of the REER—HHBE AR
Group’s investment in an associate & 7 BRMEE 17,983 17,219
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REELENRE
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 340,830 313,141
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEE ZEmE 14,361 13,527
355,191 326,668
Loans to a joint venture m—HEeEEERECER 169,898 160,027
525,089 486,695

Loans to a joint venture of RMB122,000,000 (approximately
HK$144,887,000) (2019: RMB122,000,000 (approximately
HK$136,469,000)) and RMB21,060,000 (approximately
HK$25,011,000) (2019: RMB21,060,000 (approximately
HK$23,558,000)) are unsecured, bear interest at fixed rates
of 68.0% per annum (2019: 6.0%) and 6.4% per annum
(2019: 6.4%), respectively, and are repayable from 2021
to 2023 (2019: from 2021 to 2023). In the opinion of the
directors, these loans are considered as part of the Group’s
net investments in the joint venture and are not expected
to be repayable in the next twelve months from the end of
the reporting period. There was no recent history of default
and past due amounts for loans to a joint venture. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, the loss allowance was assessed
to be minimal.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A

m—MEA & ERME122,000,000 A
R (#9144,887,00077T) (20194 :
122,000,000 A R #& (%7136,469,0007%
7T) 521,060,000 A R # (925,011,000
7B7T) (20194F : 21,060,000 A ¥ (49
23,558,000/ 70) ) B KA EIEE -
D RIAIREEB.0% (20194F © 6.0%) RIE
6.4% (20194 : 6.4%) MEE B &5t
B WH2021F £20234F (20194 :
B2021F £2023%F) HiFAEE - £
ERBZEENEBAERRAEDE
FINER 2 RIBH NSRS S
KEH+—EARNEE - AW EH

AETCEBERNENRL S aHS
B o HE2020F K 2019F12A31H -
EE R E A AR
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31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19. AEELENKREE)

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows: REEEERENFBLOT :

Percentage of
Particulars Place of CELS
of issued registration Ownership Voting Principal
Name shares held and business interest power sharing activities
BEERM
28 Riys ERREBEE ERERD REE  ELEA TEEH
Ningbo Ningxiang Liquid Chemicals Paid-up PRC/ 60 60 Terminal storage and
Terminal Co., Ltd.# capital of Mainland handling of liquid
ERENR REBEERAR RMB7,350,000 China chemicals
BRRA e/ RENEnEE
7,350,000A R hEAH, E{ A
Ningbo Xinxiang Liquid Chemical Paid-up PRC/ 60 60 6! Terminal storage and
Store Co., Ltd.* capital of Mainland handling of liquid
BRRE L IRRARLA RMB4,200,000 China chemicals
BRRA e/ RENEnEE
4,200,000A R REAH, kR
Weifang Sime Darby Liquid Terminal Paid-up PRC/ 50 50 5 Terminal storage and
Co., Ltd.* ("WSDL") capital of Mainland handling of liquid
EREE R RIEEER A RMB540,000,000 China petrochemicals
(TwspLJ) BRRAR hE,/ BRALRER
540,000,000 A K% FE R E{ A

The interests in the joint ventures are indirectly held by the

Company.

# Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has joint
control of these entities with other joint venture partners.

AABREERE A EhEOER -

‘ RIBABEIZAE - B EE
BECEBHLRERZEERE

143
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e ISR AR

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

19.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19. K&

WSDL, which is considered a material joint venture of the
Group, is engaged in terminal storage and the handling of
liquid petrochemicals in Mainland China and is accounted for

using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of WSDL adjusted for any differences
in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements:

Current assets (including cash and
cash equivalents of HK$108,251,000
(2019: HK$75,911,000))

Non-current assets, excluding
goodwill (including construction
in progress of HK$281,099,000
(2019: HK$262,164,000))

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in
a joint venture:

Proportion of the Group’s ownership

Group’s share of net assets of a joint
venture, excluding goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition

Carrying amount of the investment

B & EE (B215108,251,000
77T (20194 : 75,911,000
B 2B RREEEY)

FERBEE - TRENE(BE
281,099,000 7T
(20194 : 262,164,000/ 7T)
ZHERIRR)

mBBEE

FRBEE

BEFE

AEER—EEEEEZ
R
AEE 2 AL
REBERE—HAEEEZE
EHE TERRE
WIEELZEE
REZREE

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZEREGIRA A

EhENRE(E)

WSDLAAXREE -BEZMNA 0
¥ EREAmtEREA(CRIEE
T MR » WA R AR

TREMWSDLHWM K ERBIZ (B3
G BRZEMEZREHARE) B
HIRER AP HREAARREE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
239,625 226,870
1,553,732 1,508,603
(856,240) (867,105)
(307,873) (285,719)
629,244 577,649
50% 50%
314,622 288,825
14,361 13,527
328,983 302,352
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31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19. REEDLENREBE)
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FAT

Revenue WA 168,661 133,712
Depreciation e (49,196) (47,263)
Interest expenses MBRX (54,736) (49,555)
Income tax credit/(expense) FriSRiiEe, (FIY) (4,195) 119
Income/(loss) for the year FRKA (E18) 15,114 (13,453)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREHMEEWRA (EE)

for the year 36,481 (10,267)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRZEBA(BEB) 858

for the year 51,595 (23,720)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not

individually material:

Share of joint ventures’ profit for the year
Share of joint ventures’ other
comprehensive income/(loss)
Share of joint ventures’ total
comprehensive income
Aggregate carrying amount
of the Group’s investments
in joint ventures

TRIARKEERILETERZAE

2019
HK$’000
TAET
4,640

(355)

4,285

2 EHMBER
2020
HK$’000
FBx
[EIEE B EFRER 5,028
JEMRE &S
Hi2ERA S (E18) 1,390
FEMRE S
FHERABEE 6,418
REBREEDE
TE& 2 EREE
26,208

24,316
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20. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20. EWERRKREE

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBx F&T

Accounts receivable FEUBR X 26,859 30,918

Bills receivable RN EE 4,734 1,586

31,593 32,504
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on MIEFE —MRATELN TN » KNEE
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance MNEFAZZHEAH - EAHE—®K
is normally required. The credit period is generally 30 days, RIOK - EEF P HEKHAR B AT IE
extending to up to 60 days for major customers. The REB0OK o NEEERIEEHERE
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding BREKEN =aREEESTHEZ
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by BERAE R o AN E0 L E e RN
senior management. The Group did not hold any collateral A A ERmSEMER 2R

or other credit enhancement over its accounts receivable F o RUERFRWELT S ©

balance. Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of RBERR - BEBREZEHHRAMAERL
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: FEUSBRFRBRES OATAA T

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FExT FH&T
Current to 30 days ENEAZ 30K 25,816 28,833
31 to 60 days 31260k 9 738
61 to 90 days 61290k - 832
Over 90 days 90K 1,034 515
26,3859 30,918

146 Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZEREGIRA A



20.

21.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
customer type). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, accounts receivable
are written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity. As at 31 December 2020
and 2019, the Group estimated that the expected loss rate
of accounts receivable was minimal and no ECL allowance in
respect of these balances was made.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Prepayments TEfRTR

Deposits and other receivables

Portion classified as current assets (note) D IEAREEERZ D Bzt

Portion classified as non-current assets DERIEREEEMNZ

Note:

As at 31 December 2020, included in deposits and other receivables
was a receivable from WSDL, a joint venture of the Company, of
HK$37,067,000 (2019: HK$26,783,000), which was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to deposits
and receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. The carrying amounts of these deposits and other
receivables approximate to their fair values. As at 31 December 2020
and 2019, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

Be MEMRKIR

20.

21.

e ISR AR M

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

EWRERRE®E(E

&S A AR AR A BRI TRE
DT AEFEBEBEESE - BE
EERABEUEBEEREANZ @
BEEEAR BREFEAEH) K
BERREEE T o AR E R R
R EBERAEMAREBBISH
ERBEEIR - AR R AR KEE
BEBANEERATSEER - —%m
T WEBERFa EIEE—F - AT
AHSE - EAZEITIERR - B
2020 &2019%12A31H » A& E
fhETFEWER RTE A B R TN 238 -
WS EHZ SR ELTEREERES
BEE -

AN - B R At ERFIE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
3,250 9,562
37,993 27,653
41,243 37,215
(40,907) (34,652)
336 2,563

fE

MN2020F12A318 © BREERELE
HERNRBEBRARERNAA ZAE R
WSDLK)—%37,067,0007% 7T (20194F :
26,783,000 T) M EWGKIE « ZKIE A
IR - 2B REREREE -

FiiEgSRPREN SR E EMARIIIEE
Rt kafHeENES RERFIAER
B - ZEiES KA ERGIER AR E R
ERAARERE » R2020%F %2019 124
318 - EEBEWTEARE -
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e ISR AR

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22, HEeRBEESZEEY

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHBT T

Cash and bank balances B MIRTT4E 8 44,557 70,574

Time deposits with original maturity of REZHEB DR =@A =z

less than three months TEBIfE R 243,843 172,624
Cash and cash equivalents on the RERE MR TR
consolidated statement of ReRREEEY

financial position 288,400 243,198

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances denominated in Renminbi ("RMB") amounted to
HK$245,547,000 (2019: HK$210,550,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A

RARBERR  UARE(TARE])
FHERIR S MIRTT A #RIE245,547,000
7T (20194 : 210,550,000 7T) °
ARETREEARLBREMER - 4
i AR IR A B At A S B B R A A
RiEE - EERMNESERT @ A%
S BERRETINEERRR
17 BARKE HIRKE M EY -

RITRSEE AR TERFL T
SERBDALE - S HRE KRN
F—RI=EATE  BIAEEL
BB EBRME + ARG
FE M RRFIR B8 « SRITHEBTE
MO 40T - BB RITPHIE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

Other payables H A FRIE
Accruals JEErE A

Contract liabilities in relation
to deferred income

Less: Current portion W mENES

Non-current portion

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of one month.

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of
the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations
that are unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period. The
Group expects that the transaction prices allocated to the
unsatisfied performance obligations will be recognised as
revenue when the Group provides services to the customers.

As at 31 December 2020, the contract liabilities of
HK$28,678,000 (31 December 2019: HK$31,111,000; 1
January 2019: HK$36,594,000) included deferred revenue
arising from the terminal storage and the handling services
of liquid chemicals. The decrease in contract liabilities in
2020 and 2019 was mainly due to the decrease in deferred
revenue arising from the terminal storage and handling
services of liquid chemicals. Included in the non-current
portion of HK$23,667,000 (2019: HK$26,461,000) were
contract liabilities in relation to deferred revenue expected to
be recognised in more than one year related to provision of
terminal storage services.

BRRTEWANGHEE

e ISR AR M

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

23. HEARKIE - B ERARGHNE

&

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

4,305 5,280

10,540 13,973

28,678 31,111

43,523 50,364
(19,856) (23,903)

23,667 26,461

H M EA A AN E BB R
AIEA -

BHNEBEREEREPRIEERT
RENRENR ZERERE - NEE
BN EERTRBHRENXHE
RN AREREFEE S mEER
AN -

R2020F12A31H - BHEREA
28,678,000/ 7T (201912 A31H
31,111,000/ T : 201941 A18 :
36,594,000/ T) BB R E(L 2R
BHEBEMEERBEE ZELER
A ° 20205 K2019F & B ERD
FEHNREBCEmOISERTRE
BREEEHELERARD - 5T A
IEmENER D HY23,667,00058 7T (2019
F : 26,461,000/ 70) BH BIRHT
BREATFIRETEZ N — FRERMIEL
WARELELE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
nv_\éﬂzti%ﬁ% MT.I.EI

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 24, FFERTRHEMEE
BORROWINGS
2020 2019
Effective interest rate Maturity HK$’000 HK$'000
BRH= ) :i)= TR TET
Current RE S
Lease liabilities (note 16(b))  3.73%-4.75% 2021 14,172 2,652
HEEE (71600) 20214
Bank loan - unsecured Hong Kong Interbank 2021 (2019: 2020) 49,250 49,000
Offer Rate ("HIBORY),
plus 1.4%
RITER — EHH BBRITRERSFIE 20214 (20194F : 2020%F)
([BARTRAZEREFIE])
+1.4%
Bank loan - unsecured HIBOR, plus 1.9% 2021 (2019: 2020) 22,500 3,000
SBITER — EIK A BERTRERENEL.9% 20214F (20194 : 2020%F)
Total current BREIH 85,922 54,652
Non-current ik i)
Lease liabilities (note 16(0))  4.75% (2019: 3.73%) 2022 830 1,941
HEEE (MrEE16(0) 4.75% (20197 : 3.73%) 20224
Bank loan - unsecured HIBOR, plus 1.4% 2022 (2019: 2021) 99,625 124,000
RITEH— BHA EEROTRERBFE 4% 20224 (2019 : 20214F)
Bank loan - unsecured HIBOR, plus 1.9% Nil (2019: 2021) - 22,500
RITEH— EHH BERTRERENE.9% & (2019%F : 2021%F)
Total non-current BFERBBD 100,455 148,441
Total Fo 186,377 203,093

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Analysed into: LI
Bank loans repayable: PITEREER -
Within one year 15/
In the second year ks
Other borrowings repayable: HihEEER :
Within one year 1R
In the second year o
Notes:

(@  As at 31 December 2020, except for the lease liabilities of
HK$13,061,000 (2019: HK$783,000) which are denominated
in Renminbi, all borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

(b) As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, no bank guarantees were
provided by the Company and its subsidiaries.

24,

e ISR AR M

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

FFRRTRAEMESR (F

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
71,750 52,000
99,625 146,500
171,375 198,500
14,172 2,652
830 1,941
15,002 4,593
186,377 203,093

R2020%F 1283180 - KHEEAE
13,061,000/ 7T (20194F : 783,000
BT MARKEHES - FTBBEY
LAFS TTRTHE ©

R20204F 2019412831 H » &

X ) Je EL Y A B AR AR AR TR
TTHR -
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e BRI

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

25. DEFERRED TAX 25, EAEBIE

RAFERERARBENREEZH

Movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

152

year are as follows: BT
Deferred tax liabilities FEEREEE
Withholding
taxes
BmH
HK$'000
FHT
At 1 January 2019 R20195F1 A1H 4,432
Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit BFNBmERHRAEERE (fiE12)
or loss during the year (note 12) 4,214
Withholding tax paid on repatriation of earnings from  st—EHB AR RAESE
a subsidiary and joint ventures B 1 & 2 A5 B9 TR 0B (5,203)
Exchange realignment M 3, (49)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 M2019412 A31H &2020%F1 A1H 3,394
Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit BFNBmRHRAEERE (fiE12)
or loss during the year (note 12) 3,968
Withholding tax paid on repatriation of earnings from  Ft—REIMB AR KA EDE
a subsidiary and joint ventures B 1 & M 2 5 B9 TE 408 (2,924)
Exchange realignment M 3, 177
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 4,615

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZEREGIRA A
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25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets

At 1 January 2019

Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit
or loss during the year (note 12)
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit
or loss during the year (note 12)
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020

25, IEIEFIIE (B

EERBEE

20191 A18

FFAFRBEROELEHREA (HEE12)

BEE 5 2

R2019412 A31 8 202051 A1H

FFAFRBERELTHA (HTEE12)

B 54 FA

1202012831 H

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

Timing
difference
on revenue
recognition
of taxable
profit
PERBLSFIM
WA
RREZER
HK$'000
THT

8,256

(874)
(131)

7,251

(866)
399

6,784
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e IR R M

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 25, EERIE (£
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 5% to RIEP BB FEMENE - MABA
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign BXSIEVANE TR ERIFEIMR B E BRI
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in BBHEHWE5%ZE10%MTEIN © %
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January FEBH2008F1 A1HRBAER - WiEA
2008 and applies to earnings generated after 31 December FAmR2007F12A31H 2 BEANEA
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there A o i Bl P b EA IR SIS B 2 T )
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction FEREREFIBHBESE R - BIAik
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate BEEINRELT - RAEEmF
is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on AT ERL% - Hit - AEEEAR
dividends distributed by the subsidiary, associate and joint R BRI HHTEB AT - BEAQ
ventures established in Mainland China in respect of earnings AN A EDEMN2008%1 A1 HRFT
generated from 1 January 2008. 1F RN R EEAR B AANTEFIR ©
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of REBRBEAEEANMEEIE
HK$177,647,000 (2019: HK$162,957,000) that are available 177,647,000 7T, (20194F : 162,957,000
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the BT - FIER BRI HEE BB
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets RNEIR BRERENEN o AREAIRIE
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as HIEEEMMBAREEE —BRRE -
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making BARAREERE AL SELIER
for some time and in the opinion of the directors of the BOm Al SETR IR A - T ERZSE
Company, it is not considered probable that taxable profits EERREERIEEE
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the RN ENRAS T AR R 2 R B BE & (AT T
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. BHRER -
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. BRA
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERx FHIT
Authorised: EE
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 4,000,000,000% &% FI1E
HK$0.10 each 01082 EBh% 400,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
1,220,628,000 ordinary shares of 1,220,628,000/% &R &
HK$0.10 each 0108 T &R 122,063 122,063
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27.

28.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the
"Share Option Scheme") to provide incentives to eligible
participants (including employees, executives or officers,
directors including non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and agents of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long term growth of
the Group and to enable the Company to attract and retain
high calibre employees. During the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019, no share options were granted, exercised or
cancelled by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.
There were no outstanding share options under the Share
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve mainly represents the difference
between the consideration and the book value of the
share of the net assets acquired in respect of the
acquisition of non-controlling interests.

(ii) Reserve funds

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable
in the PRC, the Group’s subsidiary established in the
PRC is required to transfer a certain percentage of
its statutory annual profit after tax (after offsetting any
prior year’s losses), if any, to the reserve funds until
the balance of the funds reaches 50% of its respective
registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions
as set out in the relevant PRC regulations, the
statutory surplus fund may be used to offset against
accumulated losses of the PRC subsidiary. The amount
of the transfer is subject to the approval of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiary.

27.

28.

e ISR AR M

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

R

NE®P201145 A 23 B IR EE AT #E
STEI(MERERTE) - EERBEE
B2 EE (BIEARQ R REERK B
NAIZIEE  ITHRABSEABE -
EE(BEIENTES B ILIENTT
B%) B #HE - #HED T
FPRARE)  BHEHAEEREE
RIEHZERL - (REARQRRARIE
BRTHZER - REZE2020F &
2019 12A81HIEFER - AR F]
BERRERETEIR D - 1T SGE
SHEEARAE - W2020F12 318 © BB
MRt &I T 2 AR R EIT (L
(2019%F : ) -

f#th

7 S B AR R
GABRBBE -

TEEIRN

) EXEE

BEAFREIREE I
SR EREGMKEE
EFEREECRNERE -

(i) REEES

RIEFBEERORBER - K
SERN T BB AR RA
BRETBOLEBRERIZ (K
HEMREFEEBERR)AEF
Ead(ma) EFFEES B
EETHEBEISBEMER
H150% ° BT E BT BIAR
FREEE TRHEIT - JXE &%
RiEE A AR BB A
AIMREER - BRSBAL
TEMBARESTSNILE
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e ISR AR

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

28. RESERVES (continued)

29,

(iii) Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations in the PRC which are
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

U)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
other payables and accruals in relation to
additions of property, plant and equipment of
HK$28,000 (2019: HK$26,000). The additions
have had no cash flow impact on the Group
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
HK$2,227,000 (2019: HK$1,617,000) in relation
to the purchase of property, plant and equipment
was transferred from prepayments to property,
plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
loan interest income of HK$9,790,000 (2019:
HK$10,115,000) from a joint venture was settled
through a receivable from a joint venture.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of HK$15,111,000
(2019: HK$1,658,000) and HK$15,111,000
(2019: HK$1,658,000), respectively, in respect of
lease arrangements for buildings and structures.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A

28. f#E(E

29,

(iii)

BE 7R B sk

ERRBRERERREREE
BB HREELNFTA IMNE
ZR - WIREMEES BN Es
HREEIE

FERETREBRME

(@)

TEHFRERH

U

(i)

)

(V)

B2020%F12831H -
AEEHGEBRNEY
*¥ - BEEEENEMmE
5038 & fE 51 2 28,000
T (20194 : 26,0008
TL) © RN B E AN K B E
£2020F Kk2019F12 A
1B EFEATEREST

=

=214
EVE -

H E2020F12 A31 B ILE
B EHEEYE KE
&R 782,227 00075
7t (20194F : 1,617,000/
T ISR B - R &
R AR

H E2020F12 A31 H LA
B RE—HEELEN
9,790,000/ 7T (20194
10,115,000/87T) B3 FI &
WABBREKR—HEE &R
EMRIS -

HZE2020%F12A31H 1t
FE - BEFREEMHE
EZYms - ~EEER
BEERMEABENIER
ERNE D HRIAE15,111,000
757 (20194 : 1,658,000
#7T) % 15,111,000 7T
(20194 : 1,658,000/%
JL) ©
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e ISR AR M

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29. FEBEERERMT(E
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) BMEEBFEENEEEE
activities
2020
Interest-
Lease bearing

At 1 January 2019

Changes from financing cash flows

New leases

Interest expenses

Interest paid classified as
operating cash flows

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020

Changes from financing cash flows

New leases

Interest expenses

Interest paid classified as
operating cash flows

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020

liabilities bank loans

HERE FFERITER

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT FAT

720191 A1H 5,612 175,500

BER S RELH) (2,667) 14,497

FHEE 1,658 =

MERX 232 8,503
PEREEREREN

BERFE (232) =
b 5 S (10) -
R2019%F12A318 &

202041 A1H 4,593 198,500
MERSRELH (5,401) (33,085)
FEEE 15,111 -
B 282 5,960
PEREERSREN

EATHLE (282) -
b H A 699 -
120204124318 15,002 171,375
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31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 290. HEBELHRERMTEZE)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEFRSRHEZE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the HREEREXRTHERER
statement of cash flows is as follows: HABREINT

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx T

Within operating activities NCE=DEE I 8,560 11,374

Within financing activities REVEREIA 5,401 2,667

13,961 14,041

30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL 30. MEEARFERER 2D EEMH

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS B
Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non- ATESIEREAEAI R R
controlling interests are set out below: AL EH B AR -
NJDC AREA
2020 2019
Percentage of equity interest held by AR R P R R R
non-controlling interests in NJDC IR#EE » 9.99% 9.99%
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Profit for the year allocated to FRNHIE T IR R
non-controlling interests Z A 7,826 6,668
Dividends paid to non-controlling ST TR AFEERR
interests of NJDC 2 IRE 5,997 11,013
Accumulated balances of non-controling  FEIZEAR SR R Bk
interests at the end of the 2 RIELERR
reporting period 49,837 45,120
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31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL 30. BEEARFERERZBIEEH

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) BAR &)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TEREAA LB A BB TS B BT
information of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed Z o KBS AREEM AR EE
are before any inter-company eliminations: 8 :
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Revenue WA 238,148 229,849
Other income H A 4,459 2,613
Total expenses B (163,512) (165,091)
Profit for the year F N 79,095 67,371
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FRETEURA 4258 107,203 59,192
Current assets MENEE 69,444 66,463
Non-current assets ERBNEE 532,797 526,437
Current liabilities mEAE (58,955) (94,822)
Non-current liabilities MBI AR (24,497) (26,461)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBFBRERE T 135,844 138,672
Net cash flows used in investing activities & EBFTRIR &R EFHE (16,400) (9,149)
Net cash flows used in financing activites ~ BEE/EBFTAE & REF5E (116,048) (133,066)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash B4 MIREHE YL,
equivalents (R F8E 3,396 (3,543)
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31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

31.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital expenditure
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for:
Buildings and structures

BT REEY

In addition, the Group’s share of a joint venture’s own capital
commitments, which are not included in the above, is as
follows:

Contracted, but not provided for:
Buildings and structures

BT RIREY)

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERERA A

EETA - BREHAE

EATH) - BREBHE

31.

i

RIFEHR - AEEE TIERFHX
AR

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx TAT
4,225 5,187

AN - EXARF R AEREEIER
BEERNG 2 BARESE - I

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THAT
278,270 262,149




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BBMALRS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (@) KRBTSRk E sy BTt il /Y
these financial statements, the Group had the following T BN REBPNER X EERS
material transactions with related parties during the year: Bt A HHETATEASS :
2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iE THET FAT

Terminal service expenses: SRR -

Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Public #R{L 2T #E A A

Services Company Ltd. EEEREEAT 0) 5,183 5,478

Rental and auxiliary expenses: HERMBRAY :

Nanjing Jiangbei New Area AT REREE

Construction Investment Group SEBRAR

Co., Ltd ("NJCI") (NTitEl) (i) 11,736 11,846
Dragon Crown Investments Limited 523t T BB AR A A)

("DC Investments") ([BEEAE TR ) (i 1,980 1,980

Interest income: FEHA -

WSDL WSDL (iv) 9,790 10,115

Notes: B -

()  Terminal service expenses were charged in 0] ECB RS F X ThiR B AN &
accordance with the terms mutually agreed EEEEE A R E R TER
between the Group and the related company G o XA T A
which was a non-controlling shareholder of R BB S JESE AR PR R o
NJDC.

(i)  The Group, as the lessee, entered into several (i) AEEEREEAERDR
lease agreements with NJCI, which is a non- BEAAI IR IR R )T b2
controlling shareholder of NJDC, for the use of ERERERI L ETH
pipe racks. As at 31 December 2020, the Group EthiE o 202012 A
recognised the lease liabilities of HK$11,277,000. 310 ' "EEEZAES

&11,277,000/ T ©
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31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuead)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

(i)

(iv)

The Group, as the lessee, entered into a three-
year office lease agreement ending on 31
December 2021 with DC Investments at a
monthly rental of HK$165,000. DC Investments
is a company in which Mr. Ng Wai Man and Mr.
Chong Yat Chin, directors of the Company, have
98% and 2% interests, respectively. As at 31
December 2020, the Group recognised the lease
liability of HK$1,941,000 (2019: HK$3,810,000).

The shareholder’s loans of RMB122,000,000
(2019: RMB122,000,000) and RMB21,060,000
(2019: RMB21,060,000) to WSDL bear interest
at 6.0% (2019: 6.0%) and 6.4% (2019: 6.4%)
per annum, respectively, and are unsecured and
repayable in five years.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (i),

(i) and (iv) disclosed above also constitute connected

transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the outstanding balances with related

parties are included in notes 19 and 21 to the financial

statements.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A

32. BBMALTREG (&)

(a)

(b)

(&

(i)

(iv)

EAtER ) ~ (i)
58

NEEERAMEAEBE
HEIRBASAHEE
/165,000 TE] LB E
2021F12H31H 1L &8
SFEZMAEHEwZ -
EACTEERAERARE
ERBERAEERFEASE:
EREF D RIFEEI8% K
2%z Z A E] ° 72020
F12H31H + A& B #®
REEAE1,941,00078
70 (20194F : 3,810,000/%5
JT) °

MWSDLIZ A IR R E X
122,000,000 A R % (2019
% : 122,000,000 A R
#) }21,060,000 A R #
(20194 : 21,060,000 A
R¥) BETBER D7l
% 46.0% (2019 : 6.0%)
16.4% (2019 : 6.4%) &t
B - ZERRERAEE
o WERAFENES °

(i) & (iv) BB B89

AR ZIER ETRRI

FUARTHRER S RIFER

BB AL RBELERF
BENHBHRRMEI9K21



32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuead)

33.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RMEE

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of

the Group

Short term employee benefits HHEERA
Post-employment benefits B AR A
Total compensation paid to key BENEEEE
management personnel A B W B 4a%E
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33.

The carrying amounts of each category of financial

instruments as at the end of the respective reporting periods

are as follows:

Financial assets

Accounts and bills receivables

Loans to a joint venture

Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables (note 21)

Cash and cash equivalents

JE Uk AR R I 4

m—fEAEE D ERHEMER

SPATEMR - e REM
FEWRIER S REE
(ff7E21)

BeRBEEEY

32. BBMALRE (E

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

() AEENTEEEASHH
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT
7,132 7,050
72 71
7,204 7,121
BRERBINEMTA

REBREHR  SESRTANE®E

EFFIAT

TRMEE

Financial assets at

amortised cost

BBERAIIRNEREE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT
31,593 32,504
169,898 160,027
37,993 27,653
288,400 243,198
527,884 463,382
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31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

33.

34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities included in other
payables, accruals and contract liabilities
HEemBE

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank loans. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as accounts and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, lease liabilities and other
payables and accruals, which mainly arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZEREGIRA A

P ARAB R FOR
EAERRANAR

AERRITREMER

33.

34.

BRERESNEMTRAE

TEAE

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

BBERRSIRN SR &
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET
13,196 17,939
186,377 203,093
199,573 221,032

MERREE B FERBER

FEENTESHTIARERERER
SEHEEYMULFBRITER - %52
BRTIATEARNAAEEZEEEE
B - AREBRAHEMZHSREE
RAE  IMETEERNREELEDN
FEYSRF R RE - B REMRER
R~ HERGNKREMENFIALE
AHEM -

AEESHMTAMSRNEZRR S
MNERE  FERRERBDESEA
% EFeRNUHEERMLEZRAR
MR - R EHRRAOENT -



34.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s net debt
obligations with floating interest rates. The majority of the
bank borrowings bear interest at rates with reference to
HIBOR. The Group mitigates the risk by monitoring closely
the movements in interest rates and reviewing its banking
facilities and borrowings regularly. The Group has not used
any interest rate swap to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in the HIBOR, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate bank borrowings).

31 December 2020
HIBOR

31 December 2019
HIBOR

202012 A31H
BARITREFEF X

201912 A31H
BARITREFEF X

34.

e ISR AR M

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

BBEREERBRRER(E

FIE R

AEEEHNOT SN XEPEL T E
EAREE UL B F R EHFER R
AR - KB RTEEMETIZR
FRRITRAXFENRTE - NEME
i35 3B DR M) 2= B B e B 1 I TE M
RITRMEREEFRERR - A&E
I R B FB A {A] ) 2R 4= B 3 0 ) R R

B -

TRETEEMEAZAZERT -
EBRITAEFENESBEEHEH AR
SEBRB AR R (BB F BIRT
EERNTE) HBRE

Change in

profit

Change in before tax
basis points BRB Al
HE g gl
HK$’000

FHT

50 1,745

50 1,130
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

34.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group primarily provides services to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
advance payments are generally required for new customers.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. Since the Group primarily provides services to
recognised and creditworthy third parties, there is normally
no requirement for collateral. As at 31 December 2020, there
was a concentration of credit risk as approximately 89.8%
(2019: 79.4%) of the Group’s accounts receivable were due
from one debtor.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 December. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RMEE

31 December 2020

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continueq)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2020

202012 431 H

34. BIXRREEEERBEKE

=B (&)

REER L FHEEE (&)

M2020512H31H

12-month
ECLs
TZEARS Lifetime ECLs
BERE 2HRHEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-Ba E-R& EZKR Bt A% #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THR TER THR TR
Accounts receivable* R - - - 26,859 26,859
Bills receivable EYWEE
- Normal** Sl 4,734 - - - 4,734
Loanstoajontventue  M—AAELERENET
- Normal™ —EE” 169,898 - - - 169,898
Financial assets included in ~ 5f ATEAZA »
prepayments, deposits &% LA ENFE
and other receivables NEBEAE
- Normal** Sl 37,993 - - - 37,993
Cash and cash equivalents B4 REEEEY
~Not yet past due CE N 288,400 - - - 288,400
501,025 - - 26,859 527,884
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 34. UBEBREEBERBEK(E
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) =B (&
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) RE R R FALEER ()
As at 31 December 2019 7A2019F12831H
12-month
ECLs
T=ARES Lifetime ECLs
FEER L HRSEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-K& E-RE FZRR L@ @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAL
Accounts receivable* R - - - 30918 30918
Bills receivable EWZE
~ Normal™ =TE* 1,586 - - - 1,586
Loanstoajointventue  [—FIAERERENETR
- Normal™ —EE* 160,027 = — = 160,027
Financial assets included in T ATBIZUR » & REMEK
prepayments, deposits FTENEREE
and other receivables
~ Normal™ =M™ 27,653 - - - 27,653
Cash and cash equivalents & KBS EEN
—Not yet past due — RABE 243,198 - - - 243,198
432,464 - - 30,918 463,382

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 20 to the financial
statements.

** The credit quality of loans to a joint venture, bills receivable
and the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables is considered to be "normal" when they
are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be "doubtful”.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZEREGIRA A
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 34. BIXRREEEERBEKE
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk B E T /E
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds by rEBEZESREBEREREE
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and (40 FE U AR 3R bA R TE AT 48 & S 7535
financial assets (for example, accounts receivable) and EMENEIAAREREE SRR
projected cash flows from operations. [E
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between AEENEERFERAERANBES R
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of RITEN  TESRHEHEESE
internal funding and bank loans to meet its working capital MG TE UWneHEEEEE
requirements. Koo
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at REBERmEAREN G HARIRST
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual FOECRBENEIEBERNT
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
As at 31 December 2020 72020612831 H
Less than 3to 1to5
3 months 12 months years Total
3EAZE
DR3MEA 12188 1255 st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TET FHET FHET
Lease liabilities HEAFE 3,642 10,926 848 15,416
Interest-bearing STEIRITER
bank loans 512 73,743 100,198 174,453
Other payables, accruals  EfbER IR - fEaT
and contract liabilities ERRAKNAR 13,196 - - 13,196
17,350 84,669 101,046 203,065

169
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31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2019

MBEREREERRBEE)

REE AR (&

7A2019F12H31H

Less than 3to 1to5
3 months 12 months years Total
3ERAZE
DH3{EA 1218 A 1255 Hat
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAT FAT FHT
Lease liabilities HEAE 735 2,044 1,980 4,759
Interest-bearing SERITER
bank loans 1,814 57,844 151,716 211,374
Other payables, accruals — EAfE{TZIE -
and contract liabilities A ERREHNAE 17,939 - - 17,939
20,488 59,888 153,696 234,072
Capital management BAREH

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RMEE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors the capital ratio on the basis of the
gearing ratio, which is calculated as the net debt divided
by equity attributable to owners of the Company. Net debt
includes interest-bearing bank loans, less cash and cash
equivalents. The gearing ratios as at the end of the respective
reporting periods were as follows:

Interest-bearing bank loans FTEIRITER

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRREEEY

Net cash ReFE

Equity attributable to owners RRAER AEIG R
of the Company

Gearing ratio BERBHE

34.

31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

BEREEEERBER(Z

BEXEE (&)

AEEZEERBLRERERL
xR AR R THIR B EFERIALRR
AEA AEIGERE - AEFEE
EETBRITEF - BMREMREEHE

Y o MEFREHR  BEEBMELLL R
—|T :
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERx FHET
171,375 198,500
(288,400) (243,198)
(117,025) (44,698)
1,142,083 1,030,888
N/ATIE A N/ATE
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31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 35. AAQAFHBARREK

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank loans

Net assets

EQUITY
Share capital — note 26
Reserves (note)

Total equity

ARRRBERRZABRRET 2B

BEGAT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
FRBEE
RETB AR E 778,773 754,644
RBEE
FENFR - Be R EAEWTRIE
619 636
HeRREeEEY 137,964 138,602
ME)EELE 138,583 139,238
RBAE
Hib s IE R ERTE R 1,663 1,923
STRIRTTER 71,750 52,000
mE B EEE 73,413 53,923
RBEEFE 65,170 85,315
HEERRBERS
843,943 839,959
ERBER
SHRBRITER 99,625 146,500
BERE 744,318 693,459
e
f& A — B 3E26 122,063 122,063
b (5) 622,255 571,396
k] 744,318 693,459

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZEREGIRA A
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31 December 2020
2020 12 A31 H

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 35. AQAREBMRREKE)

COMPANY (continueq)
Note: B 5T
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: NAREBBEENT -
Share Retained
premium profits Total
BRERE REEF st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1H 553,908 84,981 638,889
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAREEIERTE - (24,771) (24,771)
Final 2018 dividend 20184 FEARR B - (04,413) (04,413)
Interim 2019 dividend 2019 EAAR B - (18,309) (18,309)
At 31 December 2019 and M2019%12H31H
1 January 2020 K20201 /18 553,908 17,488 571,396
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZHERALE - 85,036 85,036
Final 2019 dividend 201945 KEIRR S - (12,206) (12,206)
Interim 2020 dividend 2020F R HfR 8 - (21,971) (21,971)
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 553,908 68,347 622,255
36. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 36. HLEBTIEIRE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for EE2EMN2021F3 250 @B RIE
issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2021. T TS -
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Five Year Financial Summary

LFUMBERE

REVENUE
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

Total equity

This summary does not form a part of the audited financial

statements.

LON
BRBLAT R
IR

F R

AT ARG
ZN/NCIEZEDN
IR 2R

aE
FRBEE
MBEE
BERE

af&
iEIA=YE
FRBER
BIRAE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT THET FHT THT FHT
238,148 229,849 262,491 241,464 249,898
123,466 72,355 112,397 87,106 98,637
(31,724) (26,900) (36,247) (29,299) (18,557)
91,742 45,455 76,150 57,807 80,080
83,916 38,787 66,930 50,276 70,598
7,826 6,668 9,220 7,531 9,482
91,742 45,455 76,150 57,807 80,080
At 31 December
M12831H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET THT FAT T FHT
1,070,045 1,026,430 1,064,828 1,215,702 1,056,083
364,075 313,501 276,620 190,343 249,220
1,434,120 1,339,931 1,341,448 1,406,045 1,305,303
113,463 85,627 52,519 84,522 19,030
128,737 178,296 185,021 182,099 232,090
242,200 263,923 237,540 266,621 251,120
1,191,920 1,076,008 1,103,908 1,139,424 1,054,183
1,191,920 1,076,008 1,103,908 1,139,424 1,054,183

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A
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Corporate Information
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) REREE (EEFTHAER)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin HRERE

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming =S+
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BIKHITES
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 2R E

Mr. FENG Jianping BT EE

Mr. HOU Xiaoming ERERRASEAE
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman) RIHR&EE (/)
Mr. FENG Jianping T EE

Mr. HOU Xiaoming EREERASCAE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman) RUHRIE (/)
Mr. FENG Jianping hige S

Mr. HOU Xiaoming EBERLEE

Mr. NG Wai Man RER&EE
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman) RUSHRIE (/)
Mr. FENG Jianping hige S

Mr. HOU Xiaoming EBERLEE

Mr. NG Wai Man RER&EE
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES RERR

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin HHEBLE

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming PRS2
COMPANY SECRETARY AREME

Ms. CHUNG Sau Ming EAALL
AUDITOR BEEm

Ernst & Young LXK G ETRN BT
Certified Public Accountants HEEETED
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor A R S B AR ERD
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Corporate Information
NEIEH

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT
Financial PR (HK) Limited

5/F, BOC Group Life Assurance Tower
134-136 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit No. 3, 18th Floor

Convention Plaza, Office Tower

No. 1 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
No. 101, Hao-Jia-Ba, Xinli Village

County of Yudai

Nanjing Chemical Industry Park

Liuhe District, Nanjing City

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

IN CAYMAN ISLANDS
Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

COMPANY WEBSITE
www.dragoncrown.com
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